ANIMOY







AAIMOX
2 T/oﬂh /«ag

ALIMOS

oyr fowm



[IPOANOIOX

To payikd
«kpatidio tou AAipou»

piv amd Aiyo kaipd, otnv mapouasiacn Tou TeAeutaiou

BiBAiou pou, pe mapdvia tov Afuapxo AAipou, @iloug
XEINEPIVOUG KOANUHPBNTEG, ONUOTEG, OTEAEXN TNG TTAVEHOP®NG
Akt tou HAiou, eixa avapepBei ato «kpatidio tou ANipou.
Aev didAe€a tuxaia Tig AéEeig autég. AidT o Arjuog pag éxel tn
SIkr) Tou MpoowMKATNTA Kal @uoloyvwuia® tnv dikA Ttou alpa
mou tov Siamepvd.

To «éhov» Tou Afpou eival évag tpdmog (wrg. Me aixpry pia
and ug mo dpoppeg Odhacoeg Tou témou pag. Katoikoug ye-
Aaotouc. Puwtevouc. Avoixtolc. INapd Tig eupUtepeg SUOKONEG.
Me katoikidia. [ModnAata. MNepmatntég, pe ta okuAdKIa Toug

FOREWORD

The enchanting
“state of Alimos”

N ot long ago during my last bh, in the presence of the
mayor of Alimos, friends winter swimmers, citizens,

executives of the stunning Coast of Sun, | referred to the “state
of Alimos”. It was not by chance that | chose these words.
The reason is that our borough has its own personality and
character; its own aura that pervades it.

The “whole” of the Municipality is a way of life culminating in
one of the most beautiful seas in our country, smiling residents
who are bright and open despite overall difficulties, pets,
bicycles and strollers with their dogs who take care of stray
cats. This way of life embraces residents, winter swimmers and
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mou @povtiouv TIG adéomoteg ydteg. Autdg o TpoTog (WG
aykaAidler katolkoug, XeINEPIVOUG KOAUNPBNTEG Kal ETTIOKETTTEG.
Evw n tomikr autodioiknon, wg paxokokkaAid, eAKUEl VESTEPEG
YEVIEG KAl OPAPATIOTEG. 2TOV ANIO, TOTTIKEG APXEG, GUYXPOVOI
EMIXEIPNUATIEG, KATOIKOI UE OIKOAOYIKEG euaioBnofe mdAeav Pe
TNV aneinf NG kataotpoerig otn 8dhacod pag: e opydvwon
kal mdBoc¢: kal viknoav.

Q¢ Ahe€avdpivdg, wg tékvo tng diaomopdc, otnv EANG-
da avalnrouoa pia ewhid mou va ouvdudlel moidtnta Cwrg,
avBpwmivn (eotaoid kal opiCovta mou mpoacdiopilel n amepa-
vtoouvn tng Bdhacoag. OAa autd ta Pprika oto «kpatidio Tou
Aligouy. AMwote, n anépavin mapahia tou you Bupilel exeivn
NG YEVETEIPAG pou. [1a péva o ANIpog eival évag euhoynpévog
XOPOC, KAl yI" autd SnpIoUPYEl TTIO EUTUXIOPEVOUG avBP®ITOUC.

AG piAow dPwe, Twped, kabBapd diavontikd: 2tov Aipo aioBd-
vopal «oav oto ot pouy 8161 eival o Témog tou @oukudidn.
EEdMou ta BiIBAIa pou, Tou eival moAtikoiotopikd, amoteholv
TO TMI0 dnpIoupyIkd Koppdt tng (wAg pou. Eivar otov AAlipo,
dMwoTe, TTou €ypaya ta teheutaia mevie €pya pou, Tou Bewpw
WG TA TMO WPEIYA.

To «kpatidio tou AAigou, Aoimdv, oeilel and MPOoWIKO-
Tnta. To AeUkwPa autd amoTumwvel CUVTIAPAKTIKA OHOPPES
eIkoveg. Méoa and autég, kar and exeiva mou Pidvoupe kabnue-
pIvd, mpokUrtel n oucia tou &t Ba mpere va anoAapPdvoupe
KdBe mAgupd NG (wrg pag. 2tov o payikd dfpo tng ABrvac.

MNdvvng AouAng
[loAtikée avaAutric, emkovwvioAdyog, ouyypapeac.
Aibdktwp tou [Mavemotnuiou tou Cambridge

visitors. While the town authorities, as a backbone, attracts
younger generations and dreamers. In Alimos, local authorities,
modern entrepreneurs, environmentally concerned residents
struggled to face the threat of disaster at our sea with a plan
and zest; and they won.

As an Alexandrian, as a diaspora child, | sought a nest
combining quality of life, human warmth and a horizon defined
by the vastness of the sea in Greece. | found all of the above
in the “state of Alimos”. Besides, its vast coastline reminds me
that of my birthplace. For me, Alimos is a blessed place and this
is the reason people are happier.

Let me speak completely intellectually now, though: | feel “at
home" in Alimos as it is Thucydides' place. Besides, my books,
which are of the political-historical genre, constitute the most
creative part of my life. It is in Alimos indeed that | wrote my
last five works, which | consider to be the most mature ones.

The “state of Alimos”, bursts with character. This album
portrays outstandingly beautiful pictures. Through them as well
as what we experience in our daily life, we get the essence
which is that we should enjoy every aspect of our lives. In the
most enchanting borough of Athens.

Yannis Loulis
Political analyst, communications expert, author.
Doctor of Cambridge University

ANTI TTPOAOTOY
To Ktnpa Tpdxwveg

2 Tépavoc lwdvvou Alipodaiog, mdAar mote Evwvupedg

«['dpw pag xihiopetpa povaéidg kar nouxiagy
Agomoiva [epouAdvou To yEVog 2 TPEIT

fvar yia péva, 1diaitepn xapd va mpoAoyiow oruepa 1o pw-
Etoypoq)n«ﬁ AeUkwpa-odoimopikd «AAIMO2», Tov TéTo Tou
yewr|Onka kar geydhwoa, pe pwtoypapieg tou [dvvn Mavvélou
mou ekdidel 0 ekdoTikdg oikog «MiAntogy. Mia mpwtofoulia
Tou dnpdpxou ANiou pe Keieva twv ouvepyatwv tou. Kdt mou
pou divel tnv eukaipia va egiotopriow Péoa oe Aiyeq oeNideg
TNV MPoo®atn Iotopia evog Kopuatiou yng, TNG yng OPwS mou
matdpe kabnuepivd kai eivar adlvatov va gavtactolpe o
uridpxouv dvBpwrol avdueod pag mou €¢noav og autr I yn,
HE TG XINASEG TTOAUKATOIKIEG TNV €TTOXH TTOU TaV XWpPIg 0XeOOV
oUTe €va orit. And v Aew@dpo Bouhiaypévng péxpr tnv mapa-
Niakrj kar ané to EAMnviké ewg to Mmpaxdpl, Tov onuepivo Ayio
Anpntplo, ektdg amd ta Aiya omfta Tou KTjpatog, dev urmpxe
Timote dAMo. Mdévo oto Kovtormyado umrfjpxe éva kapeveddk
yId Toug KuvnyouUg Tou gpxdvioucav padi ye ta tpuydvia. H
onpePIvV AewPdPog AAOU fTav £Vag PPECKOPUTEPEVOG EAAI-
wvag. Mia yn tpaxeid, yepdtn meTpeg, aMd ouyxpdvwg TOo0
eIbUNIaK).

INSTEAD OF A PREFACE

The Trachones Estate

Stephanos loannou from Halimous, erst from Euonymos

“Around us kilometres of loneliness and peace”
Despina Geroulanou, neé Straight

t is a special pleasure for me today to preface the album —

travelogue “ALIMOS", the place where | was born and raised,
featuring photographs by Yannis Yanellos, which is published
by “Militos” publications - an initiative of the mayor of Alimos
including texts by his colleagues. This is an opportunity for me
to briefly narrate the recent history of a piece of land, which is
the land we walk on every day and find it impossible to imagine
that there are people among us who lived in this land with the
thousands of blocks of flats in times when there hardly existed
a house. From Vouliagmenis avenue to the seaside avenue and
from Hellinikon to Brahami, current Aghios Demetrios, there
existed nothing besides the few houses in the estate. Only at
Kontopigado there was a small coffee shop for the hunters who
came along with the turtledoves. Current Alimou avenue was
a newly planted olive grove. It was a rough, full of rocks land
but very idyllic at the same time.



levwriBnka Afyo mpotoul Eeomdoel o moAepog, otig 4 louviou
Tou 1940, dwg Kkai o TeeIg peyalltepol adehpol pou, oto Kirj-
pa Tpdxwveg téte Mou to Ktrjua eixe pev ouppikvwOel oAU
O€ OXEON PE TNV TIPWTN TOU €KTaor), aAd petd amd déka xpd-
vIa evIatikig @UTeuonG eixe apxioel, mdpa TG MOAU peydAEG
KATaotpo@eg Tou MecomoAépou, va pmopel va Bpépel Toug
KaAIEPYNTECG TOU.

To KtApa autd Aray, mpiv and tnv Emavdotaon tou 182, éva
Tepdotio ToipNki evdg OBwpavol macd, Tou eixe To omitl Tou
OTO EPEIMWPEVO, ONPEPQ, omitl dvw otov Ad@o. Eva ot pe
Iotopia Touhdxiotov 250 e1wv. Metd tnv Emavdotaon kar pe tov
goxopd tou Bacihid OBwva to Ktrjua to eixe o Avdpéag Aoupl-
WING, aUAdEXnG NG PaciAikrg Aulg, oto oroio eixe Bpel A eixe
Snuioupyrioel ektpoeio ahdywv yia T Baoihiki ®poupd. Aev
efxe maidId kai o Ktrjua 1o kAnpovéunoe o aveyidg tou. Otav &g
méBave kar ekelivog, pn €xovtag kal autdg maidid, To denoe oTo
Nautkd, mou mpoomnaboloe va avacuvtdéer ,petd toug Bakka-
vikoUg 'oAépoug, Tic duvdpeig tou. To Ktrjua exteivovtav tote
amnd tov BUpwva éng to EMnvikd, kar and toug mpdmodeg tou
YunttoU €wg to Kahapdki. I'pener va fitav mepimou 10.000 maiaid
otpéupata. To Nautikd To xwploe ota Tpia kai 1o €Byae dpeoa
o€ TIAEIOTNPIAoKO. To MPWTO KOPUAT, TO IO KOVTIVO OTny TTIOAN,
10 ayopaoce o emotding tou Ktrjuatog Ndotog, mou mrpe tov
BUpwva kai tnv HhioUmoAn, To mapabaidooio tprijua to aydpace
0 2UveTalpIopdg tou EMnvikou kai to peoaio o mdmnmog pou o
Mapivog l'epourdvog (1867-1960). INpémel va fitav yipw ota 3.000
maAaid otpéppata. «lUpw pag xINdPeTpa povagidg Kkar nouxiagy
ypdeel n pntépa pag, étav avehaBav o matépag pou Kai ekeivn
10 1930, oto Hpgpohdyid tng.
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| was born shortly before the war broke out, on 4 June 1940,
in the Trachones Estate, just like my three elder brothers, when
the Estate was reduced compared to its initial size but, thanks to
extensive planting for ten years, it had started to afford feeding
its cultivators, despite the big damages in the Interwar period.

Before the Independence War in 1821, this Estate had been
the fiefdom of an Ottoman pasha, who lived in the currently
ruined house upon the hill; a house bearing a history of at
least 250 years. After the Independence War and upon the
arrival of king Otto, the Estate was in the possession of Andreas
Louriotis, the Lord Chamberlain of the Royal Court, who had
found or had created a hore farm for the Royal Guard there.
He had no children so his nephew inherited the Estate. After
his own death, having no children himself, the nephew left it
to the Navy which was in the process of regrouping its forces
after the Balkan Wars. At that time, the Estate stretched from
Vyron to Hellinikon and from the foot of mount Hymettus to
Kalamaki. It must have been about 10,000 historical acres. The
Navy partitioned it in three pieces and auctioned it immediately.
The first piece, the one closest to the town, was bought by
the foreman of the Nastos Estate, who bought Vyron and
Helioupolis; the seafront part was bought by the Cooperative
Socitey of Hellinikon and the middle one was bought by my
grandfather, Marinos Geroulanos (1867-1960). It must have
been about 3,000 historical acres. “Around us kilometres of
loneliness and peace” writes our mother in her Diary, when
my father and she took over the Estate in [930.

Metd tn Mikpaoiatikrj Kataotpoer kai tnv, akdépa xeipdte-
PN, aviaiayr twv MANBUopWV o TOTe APXIEMIOKOTIOC €KAVeE
EKKANCN, HEOW OAWV TWV EKKANCIOV TNG XWEAG 0 OAOUG TOUG

‘EMnvec va épBouv apwyol twv xINddwv mpoolywy, Tou €@ta-

0av OToV TOTIO Pag PEEVOVTAG padi Toug Yévo O, pmopouoav
va PETapepouy povol toug. Meta&l dAMwv moMawy, oto Ktipa
€QTace Kkal pia Pikpr} oikoyévela amd tov [1ovro. Madi toug
€pepav PJEoa oe €va oaki O,T Mo MOAUTIHO £fxav, Ta KOKAAd Twv
mpoydvwy Toug, Timote dMo. Ta éBagav oto vekpotageio dimAa
0TO ekKkKANOdKI Twv Eicodiwv tng Oecotdkou Twv Tpaxwvwv. Ai-
yo moiv ané tov B' MNaykdopio MNdAepo, dtav nébBave o matépag
Toug, ta &avaorjkwoav kal ta €6ayav padf tou. Pidwoav €tol
SiMAa pag, otnv onuepivry ApyupouTtoAn.

[Napakivoupevog, o Mapivog epourdvog amd Tig didgopeg
OUYKIVNTIKEG 10TOPIEG TwV TIPOOo@UYwY, amd TNV €KKANCN Tou
ApXiemokoTou, aMd kal and Tnv MPOCWTTIKY ToU ePMelpia —eixe
mepiBdAPel mdvw and 5.000 tpaupatieq otov 01dnpodpopikd
otabud tou OYZAK kovtd otnv Aykupd, Tov oToio eixe peta-
TPEPel Og OTPATIWTIKO Voookopeio— amogdoioe To 1923-1924
kal dwploe to /3 Tou KTAPATOG Tou oToug MPACPUYEG amod TNV
ApyupounoAn kar ta 2oUppeva tou [1dévtou. Or Apyupouro-
Niteg tov avtdpenpay, étav dev unmopouUoe ma va To apvnoel,
HE TO va ovopdoouv TNV KevIipIkh Toug Aew@dpo: Mapivou
[epouidvou. Emfong, xdpioe tdte ot0 KPdTOog, Kal pdAioTa o€
mAdtog 60 petpwy, TN Aewpdpo Bouhiayuévng, amd tnv apxi
NG HAloUmoAng €wg tnv apepikaviky Bdon, tn onuepivr| peydAn
euBeia, apvolpevog va ovouaotel N Aewpdpog autr e To Ovo-
pd tou, omnwg emépeve o tdTe MpwOuroupyds. Eival ta olvopa
Tou SAPOU pag MPog Ta avatoAiKd.

After the Smyrna Catastrophe and the even worse exchange
of population, the Archbishop pleaded through every church
in the country for all the Greeks to assist the thousands of
refugees who had arrived in our land, bringing along only what
they could carry themselves. Among many others, a small family
from Pontus arrived at the Estate. They had what was most
valuable to them in a sac —their ancestors' bones; nothing else.
They buried them in the cemetery next to the chapel of the
Presentation of Mary in Trachones. Shortly before World War
2, when their father died, they unearthed them and buried them
with him. Thus, they rooted next to us, in present Argyroupolis.

Motivated by the refugees’ various moving stories, the
Archbishop's plead as well as his personal experience — he had
hospitalised more than 5,000 wounded at the UCAK railway
station close to Ankara, which he had turmed into a military
hospital — Marinos Geroulanos decided to offer |/3 of his estate
to refugees of Pontus from Argyroupolis and Sourmena in 1923
-1924. Despite his objections, the population of Argyroupolis
rewarded him by naming their main avenue after him: Marinou
Geroulanou. Moreover, he donated the country Vouliagmenis
avenue, 60 metres in width actually, from the beginning of
Argyroupolis up to the American base, the long straight part
nowadays, refusing this avenue to be named after him despite
the prime minister’s insistence. It is our municipality’s eastern
boundaries.



O yiog Tou Mapivou kar matépag pag lwdvvng (1905-1993),
mepnidtnoe to Ktrjua autd amd ta maidikd tou xpdvia. To K-
pa ayopdotnke to 1918 dtav o matépag pag Atav dSekatpiav
Xpovav. 2 fyoupa ritav ekeivo Tou enaige Tov facikd podAo KoTe
va omouddoel yewndvog oto Mdvaxo (1921-1928). To avérape
0 1930 dtav rjtav koo Mévte etwv! Kdounua tou Ktrjuatog
Atav to ekkAnodki Twv Eicodiwv tng Ocotdkou, Tou llou kal
OXI OTwG pag Aéve orjuepa Tou 150u ainva. Or vaomoypagieg
NG [NAatutépag, tou Ayiou NikoAdou kar Twv Eicodiwv eival
npdypat Tou l6ou aikva. Akopa kar o Mapivdtog €Aeye Tou
natépa pou ot eival tou llou kar 6t o id10g eixe mapacupOel
ano TG vwroypagieg kal tov Alyo YnAd tpoulo, kai yi' autod
Tov eixe TonoBetrioel apydtepa. AMa a&loBéata ftav téte To
Mayyavorryado, mou umndpxel akdua, ol oTdBAol Twv aAdywy,
TO Pavipl, aAd kal To pakpy umdyeio apxaio udpaywyeio mou
€pepve 10 vepd oto TePIROAL [iow amd to onfu yUpw amd tov
Ao urmpxav kapid dekameviapid tepdotiol oykoAIBol, Bepé-
Nig kdmolag puknvaikng oxupwong. Tov avedOpuAo Tov Epepe
o matépag and tnv Kegahovid.

O natépag ypriyopa petetpede to Ktrjpa og éva moAudUVapIko
ktiua pe 300 mpodPataq, 60 yerddia, 300 kdteg, 40 peAioola, 200
olotikiég, 100 apuydaNiég, oukiég, apméNia, KnTeuTikd, Kal ateAel-
wta ornpd. 2tg 220 mepimou mavdpxaieg eNIEC QUTEUTNKAV O€Kd
XINGOeC Veeg! AuoTUX®G, N PUMOENPA KATECTPEWE Ta apumeNQ,
0 PeAitaiog TupeTdg eEoAdBpeuce dAa oxeddv ta yeAddia kai
BUBioe tnv moAuBpaeupévn Biopnxavia ydhaktog, Boutipou Kai
maywtwy, pe v enwvupia TPAXQONES, ota xpén. Etol autr| dev
pmdpeoe va emPInoel Kal Ta PnxavApatd tng €yivav n Bdon tng
EMnvikAg Biopnxaviag FdAaktog (EBIA). Apydtepa, OAeg ol eNEG
EepillwBnkav: kaveig Sev Tig ogPdotnke. Otav mavrpedtnkav ol
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Marinos’s son, our father loannis (1905-1993), walked the
Estate since his childhood. The Estate was bought in 1918, when
our father was thirteen years old. It must have played a role
on his decision to study agriculture in Munich (1921-1928). He
took it over in 1930 when he was twenty-five years old! The
jewel in the Estate was the chapel of the Presentation of Mary
dating back to the llth and not the |5th century as we are told
nowadays. The frescoes of Platytera Mary (more spacious than
heavens), Saint Nikolaos and the Presentation actually date back
to the 16th century. Even Marinatos used to tell my father that
they date back to the Ilth century and that he had been misled
himself by the frescoes and the somewhat high dome and this
was the reason he had dated it at a more recent time. Other
attractions there used to be the Treadmill, which still survives,
the stables, the pen as well as the long underground ancient
aqueduct that watered the orchard. Behind the house there
used to be about fifteen huge boulders surrounding the hill, the
foundations of some Mycenaean fortification. The windmill was
brought from Cephalonia by my father.

Very soon, my father turned the Estate into a multifunctional
estate hosting 300 sheep, 60 cows, 300 chickens, 40 beehives,
200 pistachio trees, 100 almond trees, fig trees, vines, vegetables
and countless grains. Apart from the about 220 age-old olive
trees, ten thousand new ones were planted! Unfortunately,
phylloxera destroyed the vines, brucellosis eliminated nearly
all cows and got the several times awarded milk, butter and
ice-cream industry under the name TRACHONES deeply
in debt. Therefore, the industry was unable to survive and
its machinery became the springboard for the Hellenic Milk
Industry (EVGA). Later on, the olive trees were all uprooted;

adeAPEG TOU TIATEPAQ, TO KTAUA POIPAOTNKE OTa TIEVTE, Ol ASEAPEC
mouAnoav apketd yprjyopa ta Sikd toug Kopudta, yid To agpo-
Spdpio anaMotpiwbnkav otnv apxry 600 kar petd Tov MdAepo
dMa 80 otpgppata. Ta Krjua opikpuve oAU, to e kaMigpyroIo
pE€POG Atav akdun pikpdtepo. O Adgog Tou [laviou Atav ndvta
eMPANTIKOG, aMA X€POOC Kal N KAANEPYHOIHOG.

[Map' 6Aa autd dtav yevwribnka to Ktjua Atav {wvtavd. To
1939 o matépag pag eixe mder pe to autokivnto otn leppavia.
Exel €ide tnVv mpoetoipaocia tou MoAépou Kkai étav eméotpee
oUteuoe kdBe omBapr] yng e ortnpd. 2apdvia oAdKANpeS Bn-

nobody respected them. When my father's sisters got married,

the estate was divided in five parts, the sisters sold their shares
pretty quickly, and 600 acres at first and 80 more after the
war were expropriated for the airport. The Estate shrank
considerably, the farmland even more so. The Pani hill had
always been imposing but not arable.

Nevertheless, when | was bomn the Estate was thriving. In 1939,
my father drove to Germany. He witnessed the preparations
for the war there and upon his return he sowed cereals all
over the land. A total of 40 stacks of crops were harvested
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HWVIEC omaptd Bépioav ol ApBaviteg, mou gpxdvtoucav  yia
va Bepioouv, kdBe xpdvo and ta KékAa ([Aataiég), Tov lotvio
Tou 1940. Expuye to otdpr oto omitdki pe ta gpyaleia yia Tig
pehiooeg. Otav fpbav ol leppavol kar prrkav oto peANioco-
kopeio Oev TéAUnoav va prouv mo péoa and v népta. Ol
pENIooEC ppdvtioav va to kpatrjoouv puotiko. ‘Etol, to otdpl
autd katdoeepe va Bpédel katd tn didpkeia Tou TTOAEPoU 6apd-
VTa OIKOYEVEIEG, TTou gpydlovtav f eEaptidvioucav and auto,
peTa&l autwv oydovta naidid. Tetpakdoia ypaupdpla otdpl
yia tov kaBéva padi pe pia koutahid AddI kal kdrmou kdmou
kdva auyd A Aiyo mpdPeio ydha and autd mou ékpuPBav amd
Toug epuavoug, ol omofor ta pddeuav OAa yia Tov otpatd. Eto
unépeoav va empidoouv dAol. BpouPec, dypia padikia, (oxol,
yANioTpideg, omapayydkia, TTou mryaivav kai gdleuav ol yuvaikeg
poveg toug oto Ktpa f otov Yunttd, kabwg kal pepikd oxedov
AaBpaia onmwpoknmeutikd, KUpiwg KohokuBia rj aykivapoUAeg,
ATav Ta Péva «OUPMANPOHPATa» TPo@AG TNG MOxAG ekeivng.
2 okoAdta mpwtodokiuaoa emd f oKI® ETWV and ta oucoftia
NG UNRA, ekelveg pe To kitpivo mepitAiypa. Eva tetpaywvdk
TNV NUEPA Kal autod Pe To Eupagdki yia va pnv teAeiwvel Etol,
HEXPI Twpa, dev xpeldotnka odovtiatpo!

O Epopuhiog €pepe ta yvwotd Seivd anmd ta omoia olte 1o
Ktua €peive avenago. Eva amnd ta xeipdtepa emakoiouba rtav
n aot@ihia. H emapxia, pn vikBovtag aocpdAeia, epnuwOnKe.
H udpoképain ABriva amoppdpnoe tov Piod mMANBucpd NG
EAAdag. Amé exel mou o kdBe kdtoikog eixe pia TPOoWITIKS-
TNTA Kal N yvwpn Tou getpouoe oto xwpld, Apbe otnv ABrva
Kal €yive voupepo evdg ouvdikdtou. [oiog ToApoloe va el
éva Bpopdroyo oto ktriua fj oto xwpid; To pdbaive apéowg o
matépag fj o ddokahog.
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by Arvanites, who would come to harvest every year from
Kokla (Plataea), in June 1940. He hid the wheat in the shed
where he stored the tools for the beehives. When the Germans
arrived and entered the apiary, they did not dare step further
in than the door. The bees saw that the secret was kept. Thus,
during the war, this wheat managed to feed forty families who
worked at or depended on the estate, amongst them eighty
children. Four hundred grammars of wheat for each one along
with a spoonful of olive oil and, occasionally, an egg or some
sheep milk from what they could hide from the Germans
who collected everything for their troops. This is how they all
managed to survive. Mediterranean mustard, chandelion greens,
sow thistles, purslane, wild asparagus collected by the women
themselves from the Estate or mount Hymettus as well as some
secretly grown vegetables, mainly zucchini or artichokes were
the only food complements in that period of time. | first tasted
chocolate, which was given out at the UNRA kitchen soup, at
the age of seven or eight; it was the bar in the yellow wrapper.
| had a square piece every day, cut with a razor blade so that
it wouldn't end! So, | haven't been in need of a dentist so far!

The Civil War caused the known sufferings which did not
leave the Estate unaffected. One of the worst consequences
was urbanisation. The countryside was deserted as its
population felt insecure. Hydrocephalus Athens absorbed half
the population of Greece. Each one had a personality of their
own and their opinion was respected in the village but when
they came to Athens, they became a number in a syndicate.
Who dared utter a dirty word in the fields or in the village?

H actugiNia emépepe tnv eméktaon g ABrvag. H migon tng
anaMotpinong peydAwve, of TWAACEIG EyIVaV ETITAKTIKEG £0TW
kal ye 60 opaxpég to otpeppal To KtApa ocuppikvavovtav. Ta
npodPata anayopeltnkay, otdpl uniipxe, aMd foa ioa yia ta (wa
kal to Ywpi tou omuol. O kaMiépyeieg dMa&av. Puteltnkav
ToIavtd@UAAa kai yapigaia mou amédidav kdt mapd ndvw. AMJ
kal autd atixnoav. Katd tnyv mpwtn «macokpatia» ¢Baiav dvo
POPEC PWTIA OTIG CEPEG TwV AOUAOUSIWY, TPauToUKo! armeiholoav
ToUg gpyaldpevoug, o Opdpol mpdoPaong mpog To Ktrua, évag
évag katapyrjOnkav amnd tov drjuo, n dwped tTecodpwy oTPePpd-
Twv OiMAa otnV ekkAnold yia va KuoTel éva Tomkod ApXalohoyIKO
Mouoeio pe ta euprpata twv Tpaxwvwy kar Tou Ayiou Kooud
Sev éyive amodextr). To Ktua poporoyolvtay, wg «evidg oxe-
Siou MOAEWE», evw POANIC oapdvta xpdvia Petd diaypdgetal n
mOavdtnta va el o 1/4 Tou UMoAoITou 0To «OXESIO TTOAEWS.
To oikovopikd Bdpog Atav duoPdotakto. H Egpopia dnminotn kai
piroxpruatn. To &e kpdtog dev SEXTNKE TIOTE va MANPWVOVTAI O
@bpol og yn, WG Yivetal oe TOMJ eupwdikd kpdtn. ©a 1o eixe
aroktrjoel Aiyo Afyol H mwAnon éyive emraxuixr. Etol, and ta 3.000
naAaid otpéupata tou 1918, dwpliotnkav mepimou ta 1.000 o 1923,
xwpiotnkav tn dekaetia tou 1930 ota mévte, otov [ 1dAepo Ba ritav
yUpw ota 300-400 kal, téhog, gpeivav pévo 100 vea otpeppata
mou MouAnBnkav to 1993 otnv etaipeia «Mdkpo», n omoia ayo-
pdotnke oIV and duo xpdvia and tnv taipeia «2KAafevitny.

Me tn ouppikvwon Tou KTIHPATOg, TNV EVIATIKOTOMON Twv
KaMigpyelwy, tn BepeNiwon twv Beppoknmiwy kal diapdpwv
dMwv epyaciov dpxioav va spgavidovtal kal didpopa ap-
xafa vekpotageia. Tdgol aneipaktor f cuAnpévol, pe mhouala,
ndpmtwxa fj Kal xwpig Ktepiopata, éva mnyddi yepdto miAiva
ayyela mou eixe Aertoupyrjoel yia TOUAdXIoToV TPelg XINAOEG

Their father or teacher found out immediately.

Urbanisation resulted in the growth of Athens. The pressure
for expropriation was becoming intense, selling was compelling
even at 60 drachmas an acre! The Estate shrank even more.
Sheep keeping was banned; there was wheat but only for the
needs of the animals and the house bread. Farming changed.
Rose bushes and carnations, which were more profitable, were
planted. But they failed too. Under the first Pasok government,
the greenhouses were set to fire twice, bullies threatened
workers, the roads leading to the Estate were gradually
cancelled by the town authorities, the donation of four acres
next to the chapel for the construction of a local Archaeological
Museum to host the findings in Trachones and Aghios Kosmas
was declined. The Estate was taxed as if located within an
urban zoning area, whereas just forty years later, the prospect
of including I/4 of the rest of the estate in the urban zoning
area was withdrawn. The financial burden was unbearable. The
Tax authorities were avaricious and grasping. The state, on the
other hand, never accepted the alternative of paying taxes by
land equivalent as it is common practice in many European
countries. The Estate would have come in their possession
over time! Selling was compelling. Therefore, from the 3,000
historical acres in 1918, about 1,000 were donated in 1923, they
were divided into five in 1930, during the War there would be
about 300-400 and, eventually, only 100 acres were left. They
were sold in 1993 to “Makro” company, which was bought by
the firm “Sklavenitis” two years ago.

The shrinking of the estate, the increase of farming, the
foundation of greenhouses and various others works brought
various ancient burial sites to light. Intact or plundered tombs
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xpovia, éva B€atpo, 2-3 aydAuata, padi pe toug mpoavagepOé-
vTeg oykONIBoUC puknvaikrg emoxrg Kai Tt XINdSeg oyidiavoug,
amodeikvuav &t 0 TéMog autdg eixe katolknBel, Xwplig kapia
Siakorm), yia touhdxiotov 10.000 xpdvia. H yn mou matdpe on-
uepa eixe Opéyel Touhdxiotov 300 yeveég avBpwmwy, dMote
mAouola dAOTe TWXIKA. 2fPEPA TTPOOPEPE! AVT AUTOU OTEYN
og XINAdeC ouPTOAITEG pag.

Ortav, Aoimdv, okdBoviag eppavi{dévtoucav apxaia, o mate-
pag otapatouoe tn @Uteuon Kal Pe apdvtaotn akpifeia dpxile
TIC avaokagec. >xediale kal katéypage ta ndvia pe oUpBoulo
Kal mTapaoctdtn Tov adeA@ikd tou @ido, Tov asfuvnoto lwdvvn
[MNamadnunteiou, dieubuvtr tng Apxaiohoyikrc Yrinpeoiag. Mé-
NG kdmolo eUpnua rTav mo onuavtkd epxdtav va Bonbroel
kal €dIve ¢ kateuBuvoelg. To eAalotpifeio petatpdmnnke oe
poucefo am’ émou mépaoav OAol ol peydAol apxaloAdyol NG
ugnAiou, kaBwg MoANG and ta euprjyata rjtav tomobetnueva
€101 O1wG Ppgdnkav. Hrav kdu mou dev to BAEmel kaveic oute
onuepa oe dAa pouoeia. H @riun tou natépa Eenépaoe ta
olvopa tou Kahapakiou, émou eixe xpnuatioer kar mpdedpog
NG koivétntag. To MNMavemotAipio tng BaoiAeiag Tov tiunoe
avayopelovidg emtipo di1ddktopd tou! H Apepikaviki Ap-
xaloAoyikr| Etaipeia tov e&€hege enfupo péAOG NG, kal ag pnv
Atav apxaloAdyog.

Ortav néBave o matépag, OAa ta euprpata petagépdnkav
oto Apxaiohoyikd Mouceio [eipaid. Exel extiBevtal orjuepa
Ta Mo onpavtikd, Aiydtepo dpwg amnd to 1/20. Ta dMa, mdvw
ano xiNia, dekamévie xpodvia petd Ppiokovtar akdpa JEGA OTIG
kdoeg. And g xINddeg oidiavoug, amd tov Adgo tou ['lavioy,
Sev éxel exteBel oUte évag! Edv dev evdiapepBel dueoa o An-
uog Ba mdve ota undyeia tou Néou Mouaoeiou oto Kepatoivi.
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with rich, poor or no offerings at all, a well, which had operated
for at least three thousand years, filled with earthen vessels, a
theatre, 2-3 statues along with the aforementioned Mycenaean
era boulders and thousands of obsidians gave evidence that
this land had been inhabited without interruption for at least
10,000 years. The land we are stepping on today has fed at
least 300 generations of people sometimes abundantly and
sometimes poorly. Nowadays it offers shelter to thousands of
our co-citizens instead.

When upon digging then, ancient remains came to light, our
father stopped planting and began excavations with incredible
precision. He would sketch and record everything under the
consult and support of his brotherly friend, the late loannis
Papadimitriou, the director of the Archaeological Department.
He would come to help and give directions immediately when
some finding was of importance. The mill was turned into a
museum, which was visited by every prominent archaeologist
in the world, as many of the findings were exhibited the way
they were found. It was a sight rarely seen in other museums
even today. Father's reputation reached beyond the Kalamaki
boundaries, where he had served as the president of the
community. The University of Basel presented him with an
honorary doctorate! The American Archaeological Society
elected him an honorary member, despite the fact that he was
not an archaeologist.

When father passed away, all finds were transferred to the
Archaeological Museum of Piraeus. Nowadays, it hosts the most
significant ones, fewer however than 1/20 of the total. The
rest — more than a thousand — are still in boxes, fifteen years
later. Of the thousands of obsidians from Pani hill none has

‘Exace pia opd tnv eukaipia va éxel o Afpog AAigou to Sikd

Tou Apxaiohoyikd Mouaeio, ag punv emavaAneOei. To omit mdvw
otov AO@o Tpoo@epeTal 16ewdwg yia Apxaiohoyikd Mouoeio.

Kaveig onfuepa dev pmopei va gavtaotel Mg ritav mpiv anod
eBooprvta xpdvia n mepioxr) Twv Tpaxwvwy, eidUAIaKy Yev,
aMd tpaxid kal duokoAn. HAektpikd dev unrjpoxe, diaBdlape
pE TN Aduma metpeAaiou, kI autd oute €€ xINOPETpa amnod To
2Uvtaypa. H AEH ApBe to 1953. Nepd and v EYAATT, tnv
161e OUAev, fPBe pdvo agou TeAeiwoa to oxoAeio, To 1958. Av
dev maipvape 1o Aewpopeio Twv £EI To Mpwi dev pmopovoape
va mdpe oxoAefo” twv emtd kal twv okte amd tn MAuedda dev
otapatoulog, Atave dvtote yepdto. O adeApdg pou o peydAog
miyaive enf xpdvia oto Wuxikd pe 1o modiAato! 2képteote T
Ba éheyav ofpepa ta maidid oag; Toug dUO PIKPAOTEPOUG PaAg
¢Balav, apydtepa, ecwtepikolc ota AvdBputa. Kar dpwg orjue-
pa 6ol ykpividloupe emeidr] 1o oxoAeio dev eival apketd kovtd,
Sev éxel otdon 1o Aswgopeio otn ywvia. O Arjuog dev yalelel
Ta okourtidial MiAdue orjuepa yia avakikAwon eva Adn Téte To
kdBe okoumddki éumaive otov Adkko Tiow amd to omit, éueve
3-4 xpdvia Aouxa ekel, va To xwVEPE! N yn Kal YETd THyalve
yla Aimacpa ota knmeutikd. Ta andPAnta €peuyav oe évav
UTTOYEIO £PUNTIKA KAEIOPEVO AdKKO, O omoiog &exelhiCe peoa
o€ éva undyelo auAdki kal MOTIE TO XwEAP! Ke TIG aPuySaAEG.
Ta meprtwpata twv ayeAddwy, Twv aAdywv Kai Twv mpoBdtwv
padevovtav ouoTNPATIKG Kal apol Xwveuav 8Ivav To KAAUTEPO
ANimaopa yia ta onwpoknmeutikd. Twpa amokahouvtal fioAoyikd
npoidvta. 2toug Tpdxwveg Yévo TEToIa unrpxav: XpAPAta yid
Amdopata oev unfpxav. Ekatd ouvtayeg eixe n untépa pou
yia va @udxvel Ta miepipnua kohokuBdkia Twv Tpaxavwy, mou
éNlwvav oto otopal

been exhibited! If the Municipality Authorities do not express
any interest soon, they will be transferred to the basements
of the New Museum in Keratsini. The Municipality of Alimos
has already missed the chance to have its own Archaeological
Museum once; let it not miss it again. The house on the hill is
ideally suitable for an Archaeological Museum.

Today no one can imagine what the Trachones area looked
like seventy years ago; idyllic on one hand, rough and tough
on the other. There was no power — we used to study under
an oil lamp — in an area closer than six kilometres away from
Syntagma square. Power was connected in 1953. Water supply
from water company EYDAP, former OULEN, was provided
only after | graduated school in 1958. If we did not catch the
six o' clock bus in the morning we could not go to school; the
seven and eight o' clock busses from Glyfada never stopped at
Kalamaki, as they were always packed. My elder brother would
go to Psychiko on his bicycle for years! Think what your children
would say about it today! The two younger ones attended the
boarding school of Anavryta later on.

Recycling is a hot issue now, whereas back then all rubbish
would be placed in the pit behind the house, left there for 3-4
years until decayed and then used as compost for the vegetables.
Waste would be collected in a tightly sealed underground pit
which overflowed into an underground canal and watered the
almond trees orchard. Cow, horse and sheep excrement was
methodically collected and after it was processed it became the
best compost for the vegetables. Nowadays these products are
called organic products. Trachones Estate produced only this
kind of products; there was no money for chemical fertilisers.

17



Aeite, homov, oAPeEAa AUTEG TIG WPAIEG PWTOYPAPIEG TOU TO-
Tou pag, Tou ANpou otn onpepivi Tou Jop@r| kal Bondriote ta
maidid oag va cuveidntomolfjoouv Ot KAtw amnd Tnv dopaito
oto dpdpo mou maiCouv, utMEXe Pia eUQopEn yn TTOU KATTOTE
kaMigpyouvtav kar ETpe@e oikoyévelec. lowg mapakivnBoulv va
EMOTPEYPOUV KATTOIA PEPA OTA XWHPATA TWV TTEOYOVWY TOUG Kal
yIa va ta kaMigpyroouv &avd.

2Tov ANipo, autd n emoxn Mépace avemotperti. H yn oke-
ndotnke Kail To vepd tng Ppoxng dev Ba To katamel ma n yn.
Oa kuArjoel otnv dogahto kai Ba euyel otn 6dhacoa. H yn Oa
pével anétiotn, 6a okAnplvel oav TEtpa. Ta umoAeiypata tou
Ktuatog Tpaxwvwy kai to [Navi Ba peivouv dpwg n e€aipeon.
©a BupiCouv pia dMn emoxr. Mia emoxr mou pag mpdopepe
eumelpieg, yvwoelg, euaiobnoieg kal ouvaicOrjuata mou dev
pmopoUv va Td VIwoouv 600l KATolkouv orjpepa otnyv idia
Bcon. H yn dpwg mou otéketal To Ot TOUG, Qutr| TTOU TOUG
nmpoopepel oteyn, Oa Toug Bupicer kabnuepivd ot mpiv amo
autoUg é¢noav 0w, el XINAdeg xpdvia, dvBpwTol EMWVUOI
Kdl av@Vvupol, TTou xdpnkav, yAévtnoav, al\d kai mefvaoayv,
néveoav kal méBavav. Edw éxouv piel kal o onuepivol ANI-
pouaior ug pieg toug. PiCeg otn yn, OpoIEG pe ekeiveg TTou
KouBdAnoav ol I'évtior otnv MAJTN TOouG Kar €kavav tn yn autn
TN véa Toug natpida. AmoAalote, Aoimdv, TIG OHOPPIEG AUTAG
NG YNG oTIC OeAIOEG TToU €mmovtdl..

Xtégavog |. Fepouldvog

[apaBéoaue autoreel atov mpdroyo to Keievo mou pag €kave v T
va pag mapaxprioer o 2tépavoc [epoudvoc. Aev apaipéoape TG Omoleg
MONTIKEC aIXUES, Ox1 yiati TG uioBetolue, ard yia va pnv Kataotpaei n
auBevtikdtnta autrig te ondviag 1oTopIkA¢ mNyrg.

1]

My mother had a hundred different recipes for the renowned
zucchini of Trachones which melted in the mouth!

Now then, watch these beautiful photographs of our place,
Alimos, in its present form and help your children to understand
that under the asphalt in the street where they play, there used
to be fertile land which was cultivated and fed families once.
They may be motivated to return to their ancestors’ land some
day and farm it again.

For Alimos, this period has gone never to return. The land
has been covered and it will not absorb rainwater any longer.
It will flow on the asphalt and end up in the sea. The land will
remain arid, it will harden like a stone. What is left from the
Trachones Estate and Pani hill, though, will be an exception.
It will remind us of a different period of time. A period that
offered us experiences, knowledge, sensitivities and emotions
that cannot be felt by the people who inhabit the same area.
The land, however, which bears their house and offers them
shelter, will remind them daily of the fact that before them here
lived prominent and ordinary people who rejoiced, feasted,
starved, suffered and died for thousands of years. It is here
where current people of Halimous have rooted. Their roots
are just like those that the Pontus people carried on their backs
and made this place their new homeland. So, enjoy the beauties
of this land in the pages that follow....

Stephanos |. Geroulanos

We quoted the text we were honoured to be granted by Stephanos
Geroulanos in the Foreword. Any political hints were not cut not because
we embrace them but so as not to destroy the authenticity of this rare
historical source.

«ANIHOGY
Oa mer Oalacoivoc. ..

Kahw¢ Rp@ate atov Arfjpo Ahipou!

Avdpeoa otov Yunttd kal tn 6dAacoa tou 2apwvikou
ani\wvetal to olyxpovo mapabaidocio mpodotio Tou A-
HOU Kal 0a¢ KAAwoopI(el OTIC OJOPPIES TOU KAl OTNnV IoTopia
TOU.

To dvopd tou to mHpe and tov apxaio ANipouvta. KAAG»
efval n apxaia eMnvikr) Aé€n mou onuaivel «Bdhacoa», to
aAdTl, eve «dANigog» ovopddetal to @utd appupriBpa mou
pUovtav dpbovo otnv mepioxn).

2Toug KAaolkoUg xpdvous (50¢-40¢ al. m.X.), OToV X®-
PO OTToU OruEPA KataAapPBdvel n SIOIKNTIKH TIEPIPEQEIQ TOU
AANipou urjexav o Afjpog ANoUvVTog kal EPog Tou Afjuou
Euwvipou. O ANipouc kail to Euwvupov fitav Attikol Afol
TIOU CUMMETEIXAV PE EKTTPOCKTIOUS TOUG OTnV abnvaikr] Bou-
A twv [Neviakooiny, evw, onwg eival yvwotd, o AANIoUg
urjp&e n matpida tou peydAou iotopikol @oukudidn, ard
kal o témog émou teAolvtav n EakouoTtr yioptr Twv Oe-
OPOOPIWV.

Opwg n 1otopia tng mOANG pag apxiCel oA o mpiv. ..

“Alimos”
means of the sea....

Welcome to Alimos Municipality!
Between Hymettus and the Saronic sea there stretches the

modern seaside suburb of Alimos and welcomes you to its
beauties and history.

Its name comes from the ancient word Halimous. “Als" is the
ancient Greek for the “sea”, salt, while “alimos” is the name of
the plant glasswort which used to grow in abundance in the
area.

During the classical era (5th — 4th c. B.C), the current ad-
ministrative area of Alimos used to be the deme of Halimous
and part of the deme of Euonymon. Halimous and Euony-
mon were demes of Attica whose delegates participated in the
Athenian Boule (Council) of the Five Hundred, while it is well
known that Halimous was the birthplace of the great historian
Thucydides as well as the place where the renowned festival
of the Thesmophoria used to be held.

Nevertheless, the history of our town begins a lot earlier....
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Mia 1ctopia 5.000 etwv

NPOILTOPIA

2TV mepioxr] Tou AANiJou ta apxaidtepa ixvn avBpwmivng ma-
pouaiag mou éxouv Bpebel éwg ofjpepa TomoBetolvtal yUpw oTo
3.000 m.X,, dnAadr| otn veoAiBik| emoxr|! 2tn votiodutikd mAayid
Tou Adpou tou BeoU avdg (onuepivd Tavi), Bpebnkav kukho-
Tepng TepiBoAog, Bepghia oikinyv, AiBiva epyaleia, Opalopata
mAivov ayyeiwv kar armoAemiopata oyidiavoy, Tou METPWUATOS
mou eiodyovtav anod tn MriAo kai xpnoigorololviav euputatd
oToVv eEAadIKO XWPEO YIa TV kataokeur epyaeiwy. H ouxvr ma-
poucia Tou oYidiavol oTIG avackaeg tou AAJou amodeikviel
TIG OPYAVWHEVEG ETIAPEG TWV APXAIWV KATOIKWY TNG TIEPIOXTG e
Ta vnold tou Alyaiou.

2T0 TEAOG TNG VEOAIBIKAG EMOXNG AVAKEl KAl O apxaliog oOIki-
opé¢ oto Kovromyado, Tou pépog Tou Kataotpd@nke Katd tn
SiamAdtuvon NG Aewgodpou Bouhiaypévng, tn Sexaetia tou 60!
ESw Bpédnkav Addkkol epyactnpiaknic xpriong, undokarrn oikia/
KaAUBa, epyaotnpiakd okeln, Onwe PATPa XUTEUONG XAAKIVV
epyaleiwy, AiBiva epyaleia, Aemideg opidiavou, ald kal urtoAeiy-
pata oA, orwe Bahacoivd dotpea Kkal KEAUPN OaAYKApPIWV.

Ané ta Aeipava g mpwtoeMadikrig emoxig EexwpiCel pia M-
VN opeayida pe oTaupdoxnuo eyxdpakto, eUpnUa TTOU (PAVEPWVEI
avaruypévo ouotnua eAéyxou tng diakivnong twv ayabwv oe
OpYavwpevn Kolvwvia. 2tov 010 xwpo eykabiotatal oto TEAoG
Tou 14ou aiwva mX. o puknvaikdg oIKIoHOG, Je KEVIPIKO onpeio
Tou ia peyapdoxnun aiBouoa pe pikpd dwudta tpiyUpw. Exoupe,
dnhadr, otn B¢on Kovromryado pia pikpoypagia evog turmikou
OUYKPOTANATOG HUKNVaikng emoxng!

A 5,000-year-old history

PREHISTORY

The most ancient traces of human presence that have been
found in the area of Alimos so dare date back to circa 3,000
B.C, that is in the Neolithic eral On the southwest slope of god
Pan’s hill (present Pani hill) there were found a circular enclo-
sure, house foundations, ceramic vessel fragments and obsidian
flakes, the rock which was imported from Melos and was widely
used in the Helladic area for tool making. The frequent pres-
ence of obsidian in excavations in Alimos gives evidence of the
systematic contact of the local ancient people with the Aegean
islands. Of the late Neolithic era is also the ancient settlement at
Kontopigado, part of which was destroyed during the widening
of Vouliagmenis avenue in the ‘60s! Here were found pits for
workshop use, a dug-out house/shed, workshop vessels such as
a casting mould for bronze tools, stone tools, obsidian blades as
well as food remains such as sea shells and snail shells.

Among the remains of the early Helladic era there stands out
a ceramic seal featuring a cross-shaped engraving, a find that
reveals an advanced system of controlling goods transportation
in an organised society.In the same area there develops the My-
cenaean settlement at the end of the 14th century B.C,, featuring
a megaroid chamber surrounded by small rooms as its central
point. In other words, at the Kontopigado site we have a minia-
ture of a typical Mycenaean complex!
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Tautiopévn pe to akpwtripl tou Ayiou Koopd eivar n «Kwhidg
Akpay, évag akdpa 1epdg Tomog Tou Afjuou ANpolvtog. [epioxi
Eakouotr otnv Apxaidtnta yia TV KKePAIKA» yn NG, dnAadn
Ta MoloTikd Kotdopata mnAoU TTou €divav eEaipetikd ayyeia. 2tnv
KwAhidda Axpa, onuepivo Ayio Koopd, evtormiotnke onuavtikr
nmowtoeMadikr eykatdotaon Kar vekpotageio. Bpébnkav Adkkol
yia amoBrikeuon Tpo®iwy, XaAIKOoTpwTog dpdUog, omitia pe
otevoug 5popoug. .. Or tdéte KATOIKOI TOU OIKIOHOU XAV OTEVEC
ox€oelg Pe TG Kukhddeg kal umrpxe peta&l Toug aviadayr 1dewv
Kal TIPOIOVTWV.

21N puknvaikr| emoxr] 15p0Bnke £d® onNUAvVTIKOG OIKIOPOG KAl
HAAIoTa TNV KopUuPr] Tou akpwIneiou Bpebnke Hikpd Teixog, iowg
yla mpootacia and meipatikés emdpopés. MoAig to 2003, katd
N SianAdtuvon tng mapalNiakig kar TG Acwpdpou Aliou, armo-
kaAU@Bnke Bahapwtdg puknvaikdg Tdgog, o omoiog eixe urootel
HeyAAn KataoTpor) ano TV KATAOKEUH UTTEPKEIEVOU yeppavikoUu
nupoPoAeiou. AMA ki o1 «oTnNIEGY, Tou BupoUvtar ol maiol, ota
Aeydpeva «/\outpd Alipouy, otnv aktry Kahapakiou, mpénel va
oxetiCovtal ye Barduoug opyavwPEvou VEKPOTAPEIOU, TTOU aVAKE
otnv Kwhidda Akpa. Oyidiavol kar dotpaka (Bpatopata miAvawy
ayyeiwv) MPwToeAMadIKAG Kal puknvaikng mepiddou €xouy, emiong,
Bpebel otov Ao [epourdvou kal otov Adgo tng Ayiag Avwag.

ILTOPIA

O ANipouc kar o Euwvupog, ol o apxaiol dpopol drpol Tou
OTO HEYANUTEPO PEPOG TOUG CUNTIITITOWV HE TOoV onuePIvO ANIpO,
MEEMel va oxnuatiotnkav tov 60 aiwva mX. Ye T Hetappudpion
Tou KAeioBevn. 2Tov xwpo duwg mou kataAdpPavav mpoinrpée
Cwr) and tov 8o aiwva. Autd anodeikvUouv Of YEWHETPIKO! Kal
apxaikol Tdgol TTou anokaAlgBnkav oTnv MePIoXH.
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Aghios Kosmas cape is identified with “Kolias Akra”, another
sacred site of the deme of Halimous. In Antiquity, it was re-
nowned for its “ceramic” soil, that is, the quality clay deposits
which created exquisite vessels. At Kolias Akra, present Aghios
Kosmas, a significant early Helladic settlement and a burial site
were located. Pits for food storage, a gravel road, houses and
alleys were found....The people of that settlement had close
links with the Cyclades and there was an exchange of ideas and
products between them.

In the Mycenaean era, a significant settlement was established
here; actually a small wall was found at the top of the cape prob-
ably for protection from pirates’ raids. As late as 2003, during
the widening works of the seaside avenue and Alimou avenue, a
domed Mycenaean tomb was discovered having suffered great
damages from the construction of the nearby German gun em-
placement. In addition, the “caves” that the elderly remember
at the so-called “Alimos Baths” on the coast of Alimos must be
associated with chambers of an organised burial site belonging
to Kolias Akra.

Obsidians and ostracon (earthenware fragments) of the early
Helladic and the Mycenaean era have also been found on the
Geroulanos hill and the Aghia Anna hill.

HISTORY

Halimous and Euonymous, the two neighbouring ancient
demes who identify with present Alimos in their biggest part,
must have been formed in the 6th century B.C. by the reform of
Cleisthenes. However, life pre-existed in the area they occupied
since the 8th century. This is documented by the geometric and
archaic tombs that were discovered in the area.

O AApog ANpouvtog Bplokovtav avdueoa otoug Afuoug twv
darnpéwv kal twv Aiwvéwy. Htav Afjuog tng Acovtidag eulig,
mou Tipe To dvopd tng and tov Aéovta, Pubikd yio tou Oppéa.
AnoteloUoe pia fpepn e€oxr| pe aypoIkieg Kal KTAPATA yia GoouG
ABnvaioug avalntoloav kovtivo kataguyio Eekolpaong ano to
noAUBouo khevov dotu. O Aloug ftav pdAlov apalokatolkn-
HEVOG, OTTWG OUPTTEPAiVETAl Ao OXETKEG AVAPOPES TOU PHToPd
AnpocBévn, Atav dpwg 181aitepa @npicpevog yia dUo AGyouc: Tov
©oukudidn kal ta Osopogopia.

OOYKYAIAHL

©oukudidng ONdpou Alipouaoiog: O péyag 1IoTopIKSG TNG
Apxaidtntag mou, péxpl orfjuepd, oxeddv eikoaol €€ aiveq pe-
¢, diddoketal ota omnoudaidtepa TAVEMOTAPIA Tou KOOHOU.
[evwriBnke otov Afpo ANipolvtog yupw ota 460 1m.X. ki eixe
natépa tov Olopo and tn Opdkn kar pntépa tnv Hynofmmn
and 1 yevid tou Miduddn. To 424 n.X. eEopiotnke amd v
ABrjva emeidr] dev undpece va kpatioel TV AuoimoAn péoa
otnv ABnvaikr 2uppaxia. H e€opia tol €dwoe tnv eukaipia
va apiepwBel oAdPuxa otn ouyypaer tng lotopiag tou [le-
Nortovvnoiakou [MoAgpou (431-404 m.X.), tou eppuiiou mou
ouvidpa&e tov apxalo eAadikd xwpo tov 5o aihva X
O Ooukudidng eykaividlel TNV eMmoTnUOVIKY IoToploypagia e1od-
yovtag tnv avalitnon twv Bablitepwy artiwy, TNV KOITKr okéyn
Kal TN oUoTNPATIKY aviKeIpevikdTntad. O€tel Tov dvBpwro wg
povadikd UTTOKEIPEVO NG I0TopIiag, agrivovtag eviehng 5w Tov
pdho twv Bewv kal TG polpag amd v eEENEN TwV I0TOPIKWY
YEYOVOTWV.

[Miotedovtag 6t n avBpwrivn uon dev aMdlel, ypdeer yia va
apAoEl To €pY0 TOU «KKTAKA €¢ dei», dnAadr| mavtotivé andkinua

The deme of Halimous was between the demes of Phaleron
and Aexone. It was a deme of the Leontis phyle, which was
named after Leon, the mythical son of Orpheus. It was a peaceful
countryside with cottages and estates for those Athenians who
sought a nearby haven to rest from the busy city. Halimous was
rather sparsely populated as confirmed from relevant references
by rhetor Demosthenes; however, it was particularly well-known
for two reasons: Thucydides and the Thesmophoria.

THUCYDIDES

Thucydides of Holorus from Halimous: The great historian
of Antiquity who, twenty-six centuries later, is still taught at the
most distinguished universities in the world. He was bomn in the
deme of Halimous circa 460 B.C.; his father was Holorus from
Thrace and his mother was Hegesippe, from the Miltiades’ gener-
ation. In 424 B.C., he was exiled from Athens as he was not able
to keep Amphipolis within the Athenian Ally. The exile offered
him the opportunity to wholeheartedly dedicate to chronicling
the history of the Peloponnesian War (431-404 B.C.), the civil
war that shook the ancient Helladic area in the 5th century B.C.

Thucydides initiates scientific historiography introducing the
identification of deeper causes, critical thinking and systematic
objectivity. He considers man to be the only subject of history,
excluding completely the role of gods and fate in the develop-
ment of historic events.

Holding the belief that human nature does not change, he
writes to leave his work “Ktema es aei” that is, a possession of
people for all time.... Thucydides records history with a view to
our understanding, not remembering. As noted by great Hellenist
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Twv avBpwrwy... O ©oukudidng ypdeel 10topia, Oxi yia va Bu-
popacte, aMd yia va kataAdPoupe. Onwg onpeiwver n e&alpetn
eMnviotpia Jacquelline de Romilly, va kataAdBoupe Oxi pévo to
mapeAB3y, aMd Tic maykdopie AMNAOUXIEG TTou avarapdyovrd. . .

Ané 1o 1984 emonpo €upAnua tou Arjpou AAiou eivar n poper
ToU peydAou iotoplikoy, v and o 1985 kabiepwbnke n Siopyd-
vwon TaktikoU dieBvoug emotnuovikoU cuprociou pe Oéua tov
©oukudion.

OEIMO®OPIA

AT é,u @aivetal, To kévipo NG dnudoiag kai tng Opnokeut-
KNG Opactneidtntag tou Afuou ANipouvtog unrfpée o Ad@og
NG Ayiag Awag, peta&l tng Acwpdpou AAou Kal Tou TTeWNV
agpodpopiou. Edw, yipw ota 1930, n apxaioloyikr| okarndvn aro-
kdAupe Aeipava maiaioxpiotiavikig BaciAikiig, n omoia eixe Ktiotef
ndvw ota epelMma evog apxaiou 1gpoU. To 1epd avayvwpiletdl wg
T0 «@eopoPdplioy, Tov TéMo, dnAadr, émou teAolvtav n Eakou-
otr) yiopt| twv ABnvaiwy, ta ©sopogdpia. AUCTUXKG, KAtd Tov
B” MNaykdopio [NéAepo ol leppavol katéokayav Tov Ad@o yia
OXUPWHATIKG €pya, Pe amotéAeopa va e€agaviotouy ta euprjuatal

Ta Oeopopdpia Atav maveMrvia BpnoKeuTiky €0pTH OTNV
oroia cuppeTeixav pévo yuvaikes. lNoptddovtav oe MOMEG eEMnVI-
kG MOAeIg, Tov prva MNuaveyiova (mepimou ota téAn OktwBpiou)
yia va tnBel n @eopopdpog Afjuntea, n Oed mou xdpioe Toug
Beopouq kal Toug kavdveg otoug avBpwroug. H avtpikr| mapou-
ola anayopeudtay, énwg pabafvoupe ki amd tn ywotr kwpwdia
Tou Apiotogdvn «@eopogopidloucar.

>tnv ABrjva ta Oeopopdpia teholvtay oto 1gpd TG Bedg An-
untpag otov Ajpo Alipouvtog. Emkepalig tng eoptrig ritav
SUo yuvaikeg, ol dpXoUoEG, TTou ekAéyovtav amd Tov OPIAC Twv
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Jacquelline de Romilly, with a view to our understanding not only
the past but also the worldwide sequences that are repeated.
The figure of the great historian has been the emblem of the
municipality of Alimos since 1984, while a regular international sci-
entific symposium on Thucydides has been established since 1985.

THE THESMOPHORIA

It appears that the centre of public and religious activity in the
deme of Halimous was the hill of Aghia Anna, between Alimou
avenue and the former airport. Here, circa 1930, archaeological
excavations unearthed remains of a late Christian basilica which
was built on the ruins of an ancient sanctuary. The sanctuary
is recognised as the “Thesmophorio”, that is the venue where
the renowned festival of the Athenians, the Thesmophoria, was
held. Unfortunately, during World War 2, the Germans dug the
hill throughout for fortifications which resulted in the loss of the
finds!

The Thesmophoria was a Panhellenic festival in which on-
ly women participated. It was celebrated in numerous Greek
towns in the month of Pyanepsion (at about the end of Octo-
ber) in honour of the Thesmophoros Demeter, the goddess
who brought the gifts of customs and laws to humankind. Male
presence was forbidden, as is also found out from the known
comedy by Aristophanes “The Thesmophoriazusae”. In Athens,
the Thesmophoria was celebrated at the sanctuary of goddess
Demetra in the deme of Halimous. The leaders of the festival
were two women, the archouses, who were chosen from the
group of the rest of the women. A pre-festival ritual was the Ste-




AMwv yuvaikav. [Npogdptia twv Oeopogopiwy Atav Ta 2Trvia, oe
avduvnon tng ouiypiaiag euapéokeiag mou dokipace n Afuntea
akouyovtag ta acteia kal ta Tpayoudia tng ypidg 1dupng (e&ou
Kal TO 1apPIKS PETPO), GTaV aroKAPwUEVN amd Ty avadrtnon tng
Képng kdBioe Aiyo va Eekoupaotel. 2.t SidpKeia Twv 2 Tnviwy -
KoatoUoe KAIUa aoTeiopoU Kal TIEpayudTwy HETay Twv YUValkov
mou emPaidtav va anéxouv and epwTikEG SpacTnEIOTNTEG KATtd
10 dIdoTNUa NG €0PTAG.

Ta ©eopopdpia mepiAdupavav v «Avodoy, o TPog To
1gpd NG Bedq Pe TIG CUPPETEXOUTEG VA QEPOUV OTO KePAN [I-
BAia Twv Beopmv kai Twv Kavovwy, tn «Méony, HEoo NG YIoPTrG
kal nuépa vnoteiag kar tnv «KaMiyéveiay. Katd tn didpkeia tng
«Méong» ol yuvaikeg kdBovtav kovtd oto dyaiua tng Bedg mdvw
og kKAadId Auyapidg ki ETpwyav YOvo «onoapoUVTES, YAUKA amnd
oTIOPOUG couoapioy, kATl oav MActéN. Tn vixta yivétav mupco-
@opia kal opadikdg xopdg, Ve Ol Yuvaikeg €pIXvav Otd «xdopata
NG Anunteog kai g Képne» (wvtavd piked youpouvdkia og
avdpvnon tou xolpofookou EuBouAéa, mou tov katdrie n yn padf
ue To komddi Tou, dtav o [ outwvag dpmake v [epoepdvn. Ap-
yOTEQQ, O KAVINTPIEGY KaTéRaivav ota xdopata Kal Tepipddeuav
Ta amopeivdplia and ta Buoiaopéva xoipidia. Ot cuMéyovtav
ToroBetolvtav otoug PwHoUs Kal n TEPEA TOUG AVAKATEHEVN HE
Snunteiakd ki dMoug kaproug okopridovtav ota Xwpdeia, yia va
e&aopaliotel N yovipdtNTa NG ynG. 2TNV Kopu®r Tou ASQou TG
Ayiag Awag eival opatd kdmoia xdopata tou Bpdxou, ekel dmou
Bpiokovtav ol oxXupwHaTIKEG eykataotdoelg Twv [eppavav. lowg
autd va eival Ta Xxdopata Twv apxaiwy TEAETWV. . .

Tnv nuépa tng «KaMiyévelag» yioptdloviav mavnyupikd n
guopia NG yng, N eutekvia kar n moAutekvia twv yuvaikwy. Eop-
TdCovtav emiong n idpucn Tou moAtiopévou Biou, mou dpxioe pe
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nia commemorating the instant pleasure Demeter experienced
on hearing the jokes and songs by old lambi (and this explains the
iambic pentameter), when, exhausted by searching for Core, she
sat down for a while to rest. During the Stenia there dominated
an atmosphere of fun and joking among the women who were
compelled to abstain from any sexual activity during the festival.
The Thesmophoria included the “Anodos” (ascent), a proces-
sion towards the sanctuary of the goddess with the participants
bearing books on customs and laws on their heads, the “Messi”
(middle), the middle of the celebration, and “Kalligenia” (fair
birth). During the “Messi” the women would sit near the statue
of the goddess upon wicker twigs and eat only “sesamountes”
that is, sweets made from sesame seeds. At night there was held
a torchlight race and group dancing whereas the women threw
small live piglets into the “chasms of Demeter and the Core”
commemorating the pig shepherd Euvouleus who vanished into
the earth along with his herd when Pluto abducted Persephone.
Later on, the “Antletries” would go down in the chasms and col-
lect the remains of the sacrificed piglets. Whatever was collected
would be laid on the altars and their ash, mixed with grains and
other fruits, was sprinkled in the fields to ensure fertility of the
earth. On top of the hill of Aghia Anna some chasms can be seen
where the German fortification facilities were. Perhaps these are
the chasms of the ancient rituals. ..

On the day of “Kalligeneia” the fertility of the earth, fair birth
and the blessing of many children for women were celebrated.
The establishment of civilised life which began with the cultivation
of the land was also celebrated. The Thesmophoria ended with
the “eupaedias” race, in which the award was given to the moth-

Vv KaMIEpyela TG ynG. Ta Oeopopdpia Ekhevav pe TOV Keu-
naidiag» aywva, émou to Ppafeio To Emaipve n PnNtépa mou eixe
YEWN o€l TO wPaldTePo TaIdi Tou £TOUG,.

Kovtd otn 0¢on tou ©@eopogopiou, otn votia TAayid Tou Ao-
@ou tnG Ayiag Awag, otnv 066 Mapivou Avting, to 1987, ol
avaokaég anokdhuyav xwpo apxaiou Bedtpou. And To pvnpeio
owldtav n mpoedpia, dnAadry n mpwtn oeipd twv kabiopdtwy yia
Toug emionpoug, otnv apxikf tng Oon pe €& dimhoug Bpdvoud.
To ondpaypa piag emypagng oto éva and ta duo pappdeiva
dBpa mou Bednkav dev aprjvel kapid apgifoiia ét mpdkertal
yia to apxaio Bgatpo tou Arjpou Alipouvtog. Or apxalioAdyol
motelouv ST Kdmou Kovtd oto Béatpo mpéemel va urpxe Kar igpd
Tou Beol Alovioou.

KQAIAL AKPA (AT10L KOIMAL)

H KwAidg Akpa, o onpepivog Ayiog Koopdg, avrike otov Arfuo
ANpoUVTOG Kal oUPeWva pe TG apXaieg TNYEG ATav 1gpdg To-
mo¢ ota 1otopIkd xpdvia. Mia makid mapddoorn e€nyel To dvopa
«Kwhidey: 'Evag veapdc ocuveAjebn amnd meipatég mou tov €0e-
oav «katd ta KwAay, dnAadr ota dkpa, ota modia. H kdpn tou
apxnyou Twv TTEIPATWY ToV EPWTEUTNKE KAl ToV ameAeubépwaE.
O veapdg and euyvwpoolvn dpuce Tov MPWTo 1EpS vaod Ing
MEPIOXNG, TTOU EKTOTE OVOUAOTNKE «KWwAIAG». ..

O Houxiog avagépel dt atny miepioxr] urirjpxe 1€pd g Appo-
&itng aMd kai moAdotuho 1epd tng Aruntpeag. O [Naucaviag (20g
al. u.X.), o apxaiog mepinyntrg, Kdvel Adyo yia Ta aydAuata tng
Appoditng Kwhiddog kal twv levetuMidwy Bewv mou mpootdteu-
av TIG eyKUOUG KAl TOV TOKETO.

Mia 1otopia pe tov 20hwva (7og-60¢ ar. LX) yaptupel tn Aa-
Toela tng Afunteacg kai g Képng otnv Kwhidda Akpa. Omnwg

er who had given birth to the most beautiful child of the year.

Close to the site of the Thesmophorio, on the south slope of
the hill of Aghia Anna, in Marinou Antypa street, excavations
brought to light an ancient theatre in 1987. From the monument
there was saved the proedria, that is the first row of seats re-
served for official people, at their original location featuring six
double thrones. The fragments of an inscription on one of the
two marble pediments discovered do not allow for any doubt
as to the fact that it is the ancient theatre of the deme of Halim-
ous. Archaeologists claim that there had to be the shrine of god
Dionysus somewhere near the theatre.

KOLIAS AKRA (AGHIOS KOSMAS)

Kolias Akra, present Aghios Kosmas, belonged to the deme of
Halimous and according to ancient sources it was a sacred place
in historic times. An old tradition explains the name “Kolias™: a
young man was caught by pirates who tied him up “kata ta ko-
la", that is in the limbs, the legs. The chief pirate’s daughter fell
in love with him and freed him. Being grateful, the young man
founded the first temple in the area, which was named “Kolias"
since then....

Hesychius reports that there was a sanctuary of Aphrodite
in this area, as well as a multi-columned sanctuary of Demeter.
Pausanias (2nd c. AD.), the ancient traveler, mentions the statues
of Kolias Aphrodite and the Genetyllides gods, who protected
pregnant women and birth.

A story involving Solon (7th — 6th c. B.C.) documents the
worship of Demeter and Core at Kolias Akra. According to
Plutarch, on the day Demeter was celebrated at Kolias Akra,
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dinveftar o [Nhoutapxog, otnv KwAidda Axpa, tn Pépa tou yiop-
tdCovtav n Afuntpea, o 20 wvag BéAovtag va amoomdoel T
2 ahapiva and ta Méyapa, ye 6éAeap TiIg dpoppeg Abnvaieg ou
xdpeuav MPog TNV NG Bedg, eEandtnoe Toug Meyapeic. Evtuoe
yuvaikeia omAiopévoug veapous ABnvaioug ki dtav o Meyapeic
mmryav v aprid€ouv TG yuvaikeg, Ppébnkav avupétwol pe ta adn-
vaikd paxaipia. Opwg ki o Hpddotog mpwtog, ki apydtepa o
[Nauoaviag avagépouy 6T edw Eefpdotnkav ta mepoikd vaudyia,
HETA TNV KATaoTPo®r) Tou otoAou Twv MAdwv otn 2.ahapiva (480
mX.): «...€xel 6¢ otadioug eikoav dkpa Kwhide: ¢ tadtnv pBapévtog
00 vautikod to0 Midwv katriveykev 6 kKAUOwv Ta vaudyiay.

Q0o1600, 0 AVACKAPIKEG EPEUVEG EXOUV ATTOKAAIYEI EAAXIOTA
euPANATA TwWV KAQOIKWY Xpdvwv otnv Tiepioxn. lowg éoa eidav
ol apxaiol TepINyNTES Mapapévouv Bappéva KAmou oTo akpwTrpl
Tou Ayiou Koopd. ..

AO®OL MANI

2tnv 086 Kheiolg, to 1999, n elpeon evdg tagikou mepiBdAou
arokdA\uye &t otnv epioxr eixav mpaypatonoinBel Tapeg kdbe
eidoug. Bpébnkav Babeic Addkkor kalong twv vekpwv aid kai
PNXEC TAPIKEG TTUPEG, TAMOI amAol, AMJ Kal KEPAUOOKETIEIG, pia
HapUdPIVN 0apKo@dyog KAl APKETOI eyXUTPIONOI, SnAadH TapEg
vnmiwv Kupiwg PEoa oe peydAa ayyeia.

Euprjuata pe 1diaftepo evdiapépov anoteholv ta 1€coepa pe-
ydAa papudpiva ayyeia (Afkubor) tou 4ou ar. X ye avayAupeg
TIapactdoelg anoxaipetiogou Tou avBpwrou Tou @elyel amd tn
Cwr. Or apxaioAdyol anmokaAolv AUTEG TIG OKNVEG KOEEINTEIGY,
kaBwg avdueoa otov vekpd kal Tov {wvtavod TTou ToV anoXaipetd
uridpxel xelpayia, Xalpetiopdg Pe to Se&f xépl. Mdhiota, n pia and
TG AnkUBoug Bpiokdtav otnv Kopuer PIag otiAng Tou £pepe

Solon deceived the Megara men tempting them with the beau-
tiful Athenian women who danced in honour of the goddess,
in an attempt to detach Salamis from the power of Megara. He
had armed young Athenian men dressed in feminine clothes
and when the Megara men tried to take the women, they found
themselves facing Athenian daggers.

Moreover, Herodotus first and Pausanias later report that
Persian shipwrecks were washed ashore here after the Medes'
fleet was destroyed at Salamis (480 B.C.): “....  twenty stadi-
um-lengths away is the headland called Kolias; to this place, when
the Persian fleet was destroyed, the wreckage was carried down
by the waves".

However, excavations have brought few finds of the classical
era to light in this area. What the ancient travellers saw may still
remain buried at the cape of Aghios Kosmas....

PANI HILL

The discovery of a burial enclosure in Kleious street in 1999
revealed the fact that various burials had taken place in the area.
There were found pits for the cremation of the dead as well as
surface funeral pyres, simple tombs as well as tile-roofed ones, a
marble sarcophagus and several jar-burials, that is mainly infant
burials in large vessels.

Of particular interest are the four big marble vessels (lekythos)
of the 4th c. B.C. bearing relief representations of farewell to the
person who died. Archaeologists call these scenes “dexioseis”,
as a handshake with the right (dexi) hand between the dead
person and the one that bids farewell to them is represented.
Actually, one lekythos was found at the top of a column which
bore inscriptions with the names of an entire family from Hal-
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xapaypéva ta ovopata oAdkAneng oikoyévelag ANipouciov!

Mappdpiva eival kai ta dUo yonteutikd Nlovtdpid Tou KoopoU-
oav emtupPio pvnueio kar BeEBnkav oTIG OUTIKEG UTTWPEIEG TOU
Nopou [avi. Apketd onpeia Tou CUyKeKPIPEVOU AOPOU Xpnoiueuav
WG AQTopela, arm’ drou kal pogpxovtal ol peydAor aoBeotoiBikof
KuPSAIBor TTou €xouv XpnoigorolnOel otnv KaTaokeu Twv Tagl-
KOV TIERIBOAWV.

2¢& Aatopeio oto [avi €xoupe wg katdhoimo Twv pecofulavt-
VOV XPOVWV EVa TIOOXEIPO VOIKOKUPIO KATTOIWY KTNVOTRogwy. Mia
AV KUPEAN otn B€on Tng, oTIacpéveq kal akéPales XUTPEG. 2&
pia arm’ autég Bpgbnkav ta amopeivdpia Tou TeAeutalou payeipe-
pEvou payntou Toug: Ke@aAdki kal modapdkia apviou. ..

TPAXONEL

Onwg mpoavapépOnke, o onpepivog ANIOG TEPIKAETE! Kal pE-
po¢ tou apxaiou Arjpou Euwvipou. O Eudvupog i to Eudvupov
katahduPBave turjuata Tou AApou, TG ApyupouroAng, Tou EA-
Anvikou kai tng HAloumoAng. 'fjpe to dvopd tou amnd Tov newa
Euwvupo, yio g I'ng kai tou Oupavou. Avrike otnv EpexBnida
©UAY kal @aivetal dt Atav oXeTIKA TTUKVOKATOIKNKEVOS OAROG,
apou e&gheye deka Pouleutég otnv aBnvaikr) Bouhr| twv mevta-
KOoIWwV.

Kévtpo tou Euwvipou Atav o Adgog epourdvou, otoug «tpa-
xelo» TPdXWVEG, ATIWG PAPTUPOUV Ol EMYPAPES TTOU ExOUV Boebel.

270 KTrua [epouAdvou opyavwUEVES EKTETAPEVEG AVAOKAMES
Sev éxouv yivel. Exeivog mou avakdAuge kar ouykévipwoe Sely-
pAaTa Tou apxdaioAoyikou TAoUToU NG TTEPIOXAG rTtav o idlog o
lwdwwng Mepouldvog, o omoiog avéAape to 1930 tn Siaxeipion Kka
n S1evBuvon tou Ktrjuatog. 2t dekaetia tou '90 n éktaon twv
105 otpeppdtwy mou eixe amopeivel and to Ktjua nwAr|onke otnv

30

imous! Made from marble also are the two charming lions that
decorated a tomb monument and were found at the west foot
of Pani hill. Several parts of the specific hill were used as quarries
where the big limestone boulders used for the construction of
the burial enclosures come from.

The remains of a middle-Byzantine makeshift household of
stockbreeders were found at a quarry on Pani hill, featuring a
ceramic beehive in its original place as well as both intact and
broken pots. In one of those pots there were the leftovers of the
people’s last cooked meal: lamb head and lamb legs. ..

TRACHONES

As mentioned above, modern Alimos includes part of the an-
cient deme Euonymus. Euonymus or Euonymon occupied part of
Alimos, Argyroupolis, Hellinikon and Helioupolis. Its name comes
from hero Euonymus, the son of Gaea and Uranus. It belonged
to the Erechtheis phyle and it appears to have been a relatively
densely populated deme since it elected ten members in the
Athenian Boule of the Five Hundred.

The centre of Euonymus was the Geroulanos hill, at the “tra-
cheis” (coarse) Trachones as attested from inscriptions found.

Organised extensive excavations have not been performed on
the Geroulanos Estate. The person who discovered and collected
specimens of the archaeological wealth of the area was loannis
Geroulanos himself, who assumed the management of the Estate
in 1930. In the 90s, the stretch of 105 acres that was left of the
Estate was sold to the firm “Makro”, while the present owner
is the firm “Sklavenitis”. The tombs discovered date back to the




etaipeia «Mdkpoy, eve orjuepa ISIOKTATEIA TNG €Ktaong eival n
etalpeia «2kAaBevitng.

O tdopor o PpEdnkav avrikouv oTn YEWHETPIKY, AMJ Kal oTnv
KAQoIkr| Tepiod0, v of oNUEINOEIS Tou epouldvou Kdvouv Adyo
yia Aefpava omuwv, ixvn teixoug mOavic akpomdAews, avAa-
KEG aUa&oTPOXIWV KAl TIOMEG TMAIVEG KUPEAEG peENIoOOKOWIAG.
IS1aftepn evidnwon eixe Mpo&evrioel To apXxaio TexVIKS €PYO eyKi-
BwtiopoU tou pepatog Tpaxavwy. Exouy, emiong, mepiouMeyel
and To KIrjua mpoiotopikd epyaieia and ogidiavod kal Bpalopata
mMAIVOV ayyeinv SAwV Twv XPOVOAOYIKWOV TIEPIOSWV.

Ta ekatovtddeg apxaia avtikeiyeva g MePIOXrG Tou Te-
pihapBdvovtav otn ouMoyr| tou lwdvvn epouldvou, orjuepa
ouAdooovtal oto Apxaioloyikd Mouceio [leipaid. Euxr) dAwv
pag, va yivel kdmote éva Apxaioloyikd Mouoeio kal otov ANpo,
omou kai Ba emavanatpioboulv ta euprjuata. ..

APXAIO OEATPO EYONYMOY

To 1973, é&w and tov onpepivd mepiBoAo tou Ktjpatog epou-
Advou, pbe oto pwg to apxaio Béatpo Tou Arjpou Euwvipoy,
xwpnukédtntag 2.500 Beatwv. Tomobeteital xpovoroyikd otov
50 aiwva X kar amotehel edpnpa e€aipetikol evdlapepovtog. H
0pPXNoTEA Tou dev efvar KUKAIKT, OTIwg n ouvrBng opxioTpa Twv
apxaiwv Bedtpwy, alMd opBoywvia. Emiong, to ktipio tg oknvrig
Tou efval to maAaidtepo oknvikd Ktiopa mou éxel diatnenoel.

A&iCer va onpeiwBel dt and pia emypar| mou Ppgbnke otnv
opxrjotpa kar avagépel tov OAupmddwpo, Tov yio Tou Aiotipoy,
ywotd Euwvupéa, emPeBainbnke n tadtion thg mepIoxng pe Tov
apxaio Afpo Eudvupov.

A tov yAurTtd Sidkoopo NG opxrotpag Ppébnkav akpwtnpl-
aopéva duo pappdpiva aydhuata tou Beol Alovicou, pootdtn

geometnic as well as the classical era, whereas Geroulanos's notes
report ruins of houses, traces of a citadel wall most probably,
cart-wheel grooves and numerous ceramic beehives.

Notable is the ancient technical work to cover the Trachones
stream. In addition, there have been collected prehistoric obsidi-

an tools and ceramic vessel fragments of all chronological periods.

The hundreds of ancient finds of the area that comprise, the
collection of loannis Geroulanos are hosted in the Archaeological
Museum of Piraeus.

Everyone's wish is that an Archaeological Museum is built in
Alimos where the finds will repatriate...

THE ANCIENT THEATRE OF EUONYMUS

In 1973, outside the Geroulanos Estate modern enclosure, the
ancient theatre of the deme of Euonymus with a capacity of
2,500 spectators came to light. It dates back to the 5th century
B.C. and constitutes a discovery of great interest. The orchestra
of the theatre is not circular in shape as it was common for the
ancient theatres; it is rectangular. Moreover, the structure of the
stage is the oldest stage structure that has survived.

It is worth noting that, from an inscription found at the or-
chestra mentioning Olympiodoros, the son of Diotimos who s
known to come from Euonymus, the identification of the area
with the ancient deme of Euonymus was documented.

From the sculptured decoration of the orchestra there were
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Tou apmelioy, Tou Kpaoloy, Tou Bedtpou, TG Xapdg kai Tng dia-
okédaong. To Bgatpo eykataieipOnke Tov 30 aiwva 1m.X. e€artiag
Tou Xpepwvideiou ToAéPou, aMd kal e€artiag tng Kakrg tou @u-
oIk B€ong, kabwg n tomobeaia dmou Bpiokdtav MANupUPICE
OUVEX®G, OTTWG akpIBwG oupBaivel kal orjuepa. Me 1o mpdPAnua
TV MANUUUPWY TIPEMEN va OXeTIeTal KAl O, KAToTIVAG EMOXIG,
aywyog amoppor|c uddtwy mou Bpébnke 50 pétpa votia tou Oe-
dtpou. O aywydg eixe kataokeuaotel amd pikpoug AiBoug kai
KOPHATIa Kepaidwy prnypéva oe Taxy otpwpa AJoTing, Ve TO
NBvo @pedtid Tou rfjtav TeTpdywvo.

AYO NPQTOXPILTIANIKOI NAOI

O1 mpwtol xpiotiavikol vaol mou oikodoprBnkav tov 50 kai
60 aiva p.X, étav mAéov eixav otapatrjoer ol diwydol Kai n
ExkAnoia pmopouoe va avarrtuxOei eAelBepa, ovopdlovtar «ma-
AQIOXPIOTIQVIKEG BACINKEG». 2.TnV TIEPIOXT) Tou ANOU Exoude
dUo T€tolouc vaouc.

H maAaioxpiotiaviky) Bacihikf tou ANipoUvtog efxe ktiotel otn
B¢on tou apxaiou Oeopogopiou otov Adpo tng Ayiag Awac.
Avaokdotnke 1o 1929 ki €tol eipaote oe Béon va €xoupe v
eIkdva TG kdtoyng tou vaou. Hrav apxikd povokAitn Bacihikn
K apydtepa €yive TPIKAITN. AUCTUXKG, TA OXUPWHATIKG €pya Twv
leppavav enf Katoxr|c eEapdvioav ta ixvn kai Tou @eopopopiou
kai tng BaociAikAg. H pappdpivn otpoyyuhr| Tpdmela lNpoBéoewg
HE Xapaypévo otaupd oTo KEVIPO Tou eixe aveupebel otig ava-
OKaEC puhdooetal orjuepa oto Bulavtivé Mouaoeio.

H deltepn Baoihikr unjpxe otn B€on émou Ppioketal orpepa
o lepdg Nade g Zwoddxou NNy, 2tnv aulr| Tou onuepivou
vaou pmopel kaveic va Sei ta epefmd tng. Eivar mBavd ki autr
n Baoihikr va efxe kuotel otn B€on apxaiou 1epoy, pia mou To
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found two headless marble statues of god Dionysus, the patron
of vines, wine, the theatre, pleasure and fun.

The theatre was abandoned in the 3rd century. B.C. due to the
Chremonidian war as well as due to its bad location since the site
it was built used to flood frequently, exactly as it floods nowa-
days. The later drainage system found 50 metres to the south of
the theatre must be associated with the flooding problem. The
canal was constructed with small stones and tile pieces built in
a thick layer of mad while its stone gully was square in shape.

TWO EARLY-CHRISTIAN CHURCHES

The two early-Christian churches built in the 5th and 6th cen-
tury A.D., when persecutions had ended and the Church could
develop freely, are called “palaeochristian basilicas”. There are
two churches of the kind in Alimos.

The palaeochristian basilica of Halimous was constructed on
the site of the ancient Themosphorio, on the hill of Aghia Anna.
It was unearthed in 1929 and therefore we can have the plan view
of the church. Initially, it was a one-naved basilica which became
three-aisled later on. Unfortunately, the German fortification
works during the Occupation obliterated both the Thesmopho-
rion and the basilica traces. The circular marble Altar bearing an
inscribed cross at the centre which was discovered during the
excavations is hosted in the Byzantine Museum at present.

The second basilica was on the site of the present Holy Church
of Zoodochos Pigi. Its remains can be seen in the yard of the
present church. It is probable that this basilica had also been
erected on the site of an ancient sanctuary since its building ma-
terials belong to an ancient structure. It was a small, one-naved




olkodopIkd UNKS NG Mpoépxetal and apxaio oikoddunua. Hrav
vaodg HIKPAOG, HOVOKAITOG Kal KOIUNTNEIAKAG, OTwg @aivetal amd
Toug d¢ka Tdgoug Tou Ppgbnkav otov vdpBnkd Tou.

Apketd apydtepa, Peta&u 12ou kar [7ou aiwva ktidetarl o lepdg
Nadc twv Eioodiwv tng ©eotdkou, mou Bpioketar oto KtAua le-
POUAAVOU Kal O PIKOOG KAUAPOOKENAoTog vadg Tou Ayiou Koopd,
HE ToIXoypapieg mou cwlovtal Exp! oreQal.

BYZANTIO KAI TOYPKOKPATIA

2.TOUG €vIeKka alwveg tng Bulavtiviig Autokpatopiag n mapaiia-
k) {wvn NG ATUKAG anmoduvapwvetal, Kupiwg emeidr] upiotatal Tig
emO€oeIg Kal TIG AenAaoieg Twv Meipatwv. Mapaopdg, mapakyr Ki
eykatdAein, eve ol AyooToi KAToIKol aoxoAoUVTal e T Yewpyia,
TNV KINVoTpo®ia Kal Tnv aAigia.

2tnv Toupkokpatia dAn n yn tng ATukrg avrike OTOV COUATAVO.
Tn Bpnokeutikr kai tn dikaotikr| eEouoia eixe 0 HOUPTAG, AViTE-
POG PHOUGOUAAVOG KANPIkSG. O pougtig Iumpardu Xapld uméng
Kateixe peydAo PEPOG Tou AAoU Kal SHopwV TIEPIOXWY. ATO
autdv €AaPe To dvopud Tou To yerrovikd Mmpaxdpl, e n TePIoxH
Tou EMnvikou eixe tnv ovopaoia «Xaodvi», pia kar anoteholoe
mepioucia Tou Xaodv ren.

ANE=APTHTO EAAHNIKO KPATOX

Metd tn olotaon tou veou eMnvikoU kpdtoug, ol Toupkol,
Mpotou amoxwprioowy, MouAdve oo GO0 TIG TIEPIOUOIEG TOUG.
2TV Tiepioxr] Tou AAou TepdoTieg eKTAOEIG TIEPIEPXOVTAl OTNV
161oktnoia tou Avdpéa Noupintn (1789-1854), ouvepydtn tou
Maupokopddtou. Meydheg extdoeic yng aydpaocav emiong o
TCavétog, o KwvotavtivournmoAitng éumopog ANéEavdpog Kovtd-
otaulog, MoMol kapaBokipndeg amnd ta vnoid, aMd kai o l1dwng

cemetery church as evidenced by the ten tombs found in its
narthex.

Considerably later in time, between the 12th and |7th centuries,
the Holy Church of the Presentation of Mary located on the Ger-
oulanos Estate and the small vaulted church of Aghios Kosmas
were erected featuring well-preserved murals.

BYZANTIUM AND THE OTTOMAN OCCUPATION

During the eleven centuries of the Byzantine Empire, the coast-
al zone of Attica is weakened mainly because of pirate attacks
and looting. Impoverishment, decline and abandonment while the
few residents are farmers, stockbreeders and fishermen.

During the Ottoman Occupation the entire Attica land be-
longed to the sultan. Religious and justice power was under the
mufti, a superior Muslim official. Mufti lbrahim Hamza bey owned
a large part of Alimos and the vicinity. Neighbouring Brahami
took its name after him while the area of Hellinikon used to be
called “Hasani” as it was the property of Hasan bey.

THE INDEPENDENT GREEK COUNTRY

After the establishment of the new Greek country and before
departing, the Turks sold their property at no cost. In Alimos, vast
areas become the property of Andreas Louriotis (1789 —1854), a
collaborator of Mavrokordatos. Vast stretches of land were also
bought by Tzanetos, by the merchant Alexandros Kontostavlos
from Constantinople, by many ship owners from the islands as
well as by Yannis Makriyannis, the 1821 Revolution hero! At a cost
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Makpuyidwng, o aywviotrig tng Emavdotaong tou 18211 O Makpu-
yidwng aydpaoe évavt 2.750 dpaxpwv thv €Ktacn mou orjuepd
mepikAeietal and tg 0doug Kahapakiou, Oepiotokhéoug, Kavdpn,
DiIdeMrvwy, KovduAn, Meyiotng kar ©oukudidou. O Xaodv pmeng
@elyovtag mapaxnpnoe otig adeApés KapayiavworolAou turfjua
NG TEPIOXNAG...

O1 ApPaviteg kaMigpynTég Twv KTNUdtwy Twv Tolpkwy yaio-
KINHOVwV PeTd tnv aneheuBépwon kaholv ki dAMoug ApBaviteg
and ta Mébava. H nepioxr eival eEaipetikd apaiokatoiknuevn Kal
amopoVWHEVN Adyw Tou Kakou odikoU SIKTUou Kal Tng mapouoiag
Anotwv. EniOBwvog, o Alpog undyetal otov Arpo ABnvaiwv. To
1890 kataokeudCetal and v olkoyéveid AvayvwotoroUAou To Tia-
Aai6tepo owldpevo KIApIo NG TepIoxriG otnv 006 AukoUpyou 4.

O ANipog apxiCel va avartiooetal ot apxeg tou 2000 alw-
va. Ovopdotnke apxikd 2uvoikia 2uyypou. To 1905 ktiotnke n
MEWTN ekkAnoia oto UYwua, omou orjuepa Bpioketal o vadg tng
Metapoppwoews. Or agmehoupyol TG meploxig Epepvav KdBe
XPOVO oTIC 6 AuyoUoTtou Ta MPWTd otapUAId TOUG oTov vad yia va
eEaopaliotel n kaAr) codeid. Ta apxaia €Bipa twv Oeopopopiwy
€xouv TTa yivel xpiotaviky ouvrifeial

Ta péuata motidouv ta xwedeia, Tou Katahaupdvouy To pe-
YaNUTEPO PEPOG TNG TIEPIOXNG, Yepdta otdpl, kpiBdpr kal Bedpn.
ENEG, QIOTIKIEG, OUKIEG KI QUTTENIG OAOKANPWVOUVY TV €IKOVA, EVWX
otn 6dhacoa agBovoulv ol KaAapIEg, TTou €xouv Xapioel oTnv
eploxr| To MpoowvUpio «Kahapdkny . Enf Bevidéhou mpayuatorol-
ouvtal amaAoTPIVOEIG PeydAwy KTNUATwY Kal Oivetar n eukaipia
yia avdrtuén. To 1912, o Teppavdg Ikpdpav kataokelaoes v
mewtn Biha tng mepioxrig, petd to ydpo Tou pe TNy kdpn Tou Ka-
Aapakiwtn ktnpatia Zdvvou. Amd TG mKpodAdpveS Twv KriMwy Tou,
OAn n mepioxry ovopdotnke «lTikpoddevny». O Kegpahovitng yia-
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of 2,750 drachmas, Makriyannis bought the area which is pres-
ently defined by the streets Kalamakiou, Themistokleous, Kanari,
Philellinon, Kondyli, Megistis and Thoukididou. On departing,
Hasan offered part of the area to the Karayannopoulou sisters. . ..

The Arvanites farmers in the fields of the Turk landowners
summon more Arvanites from Methana after liberation. The area
is extremely sparsely populated and isolated due to the poor
roads and the presence of bandits.

Under King Otto, Alimos becomes part of the municipality of
Athens. In 1890, the oldest preserved structure of the area is built
by the Anagnostopoulos family at 4 Lykourgou street.

The development of Alimos began in early 20th century. In-
itially it was called Syngrou District. The first church was built
on the elevation, where the church of the Transfiguration is
located now, in 1905. The vine growers would bring their first
grapes to the church on 6 August every year to ensure a good
harvest. The ancient Thesmophoria rites have already become a
Christian custom! The streams water the fields that occupy the
largest part of the area and are sowed with wheat, barley and
oat. Olive trees, pistachio trees, fig trees and vineyards complete
the picture, whereas the seaside is full of reeds (kalamia), which
gave the area the name Kalamaki.

Under Venizelos, expropriations of large estates take place
and there is offered the opportunity for development. In 1912,
German Gromann erected the first mansion in the area after his
marriage to the daughter of landowner Zannos from Kalamaki.
It is because of the oleanders (prikrodafni) in his garden that the
entire area was called “Pikrodafni”. The Cephalonian doctor,
Marinos Geroulanos, buys Kato Trachones stretch where he
creates a pioneering farming unit. The estate reached the point

1p0¢, Mapivog epourdvog, ayopddel Toug Kdtw Tpdxwveg, dmou
kal Ba dnpioupyrioel MEATUTIN aypoTiky| Yovdda. To ktriua éptace
va ouvinpel 40 mepimou oikovéveleg kai mepioodtepoug amé 70
epydteg. O eumopog ABnvaiog epyoAdfog NikdAaog Maitélog,
HETETETA TIPWTOG MPOEdPOG TNG Kolvotntag Kahapakiou, kata-
okeudlel 1o 1916 tnv katoikia tou otnv 066 Eppou kar AMeG TpeIg
TIETPIVEC KATOIKIEG. 2€ pia and autég eykataotdBnke apydtepa
o kivnuatoypagiotig divog, o omoiog YETETPEYE TOV XWPO OF
Kivnuatoypaeikd otolvtio. O ywwotdg pédiotpog Toouxhog
EKTIoE [Ia TUpYyoEIdr) Katolkia — oUyPolo NG TepIoxrig, OTTou
Siépeve yia éva didotnua o peydhog mointig AyyeAog 2IKeNavAG.

O pdetng Twv BaciNikav avaktdpwy, Todxag, o TooAdkng, o
Todpog, n oikoyéveia AvopiaTn, TTou KTiCel TO 1I81WTIKS EKKANOAKI
Twv Tagiapxav, n oikoyévela [ikpou, ol OMavooi adehpol Gav
Bdik Bpiokouv otov ANiO TO AOUXO apaloKATOIKNUEVO TIPOdoTIO
mou avadnrovoav, kai KtiCouv €50 TIG TOAUTEAEIG BiAeg Toug.

To 1926 Aertoupyei to lo Anpotiké 2xoAefo Kahapakiou. I'pw-
N 10topIk daokdAa tou oxoheiou Atav n dekas@tdxpovn TTe
2o0pia 2.oupa-I lauAdkn!

To 1927 o oixiopdg Kahapakiou amoomndtar dioikntikd améd to
Mnpaxdpl kal avayvwpiletal wg autdvopn kovotnta. O Kinuat-
KOG 2.Uvdeopog «ANipoUoIogy éxel TIaiEel 181altepo pOAo o autriv
TNV avayvopion.

Baoikd mpoBAjuata n udpoddtnon, pe dooug dev eixav v
moAuTéAeia tou Tinyadiol V' ayopdlouv To vepd amd Toug VeEPOou-
Addeg, N NAekTpoddTnon Kal n EMepn odikoU diktuou. QQotdaoo,
olyd olyd ta mpoPAjuata Eemepviwvtal. Epxovtal ol mpwtol yia-
Tpol, 0 AoyoBetdmourog, o 2TNAIGTTOUAOG, o [ 1ikpdg, avoiyouv
Ta Qappakeia tou lwawidn kar tou T¢Pavidn, To mavtonwAeio
Tou 2KIadd, 0 oUpvoC Tou AOUKEQ. ..

of providing for about 40 families and more than 70 workers.
The well-off Athenian contractor Nikolaos Maltezos, the later on
first president of the community of Alimos, builds his residence
in Ermou street as well as three more stone houses in [916. The
cinematographer Finos settled in one of these which he tured
into a filming studio. The celebrated designer Tsouchlos erected
a tower-like residence —a landmark of the area — where the great
poet Sikelianos lived for a while.

The royal palace tailor Tsochas, Tsolakis, Tsoros and the Andri-
oti family, who built the private chapel of Taxiarches, the Pikrou
family, the Dutch brothers Fan Vaik find the peaceful, sparsely
populated suburb they were looking for in Alimos and erect their
luxurious villas here.

In 1926, the Ist Primary School of Kalamaki opens. The first
historical school teacher was seventeen-year-old then Sophia
Souma-Pavlaki!

In 1927, the Kalamaki settlement is administratively detached
from Brahami and recognised as an autonomous community.
The Real Estate Association “Alimousios” has had a particular
contribution to this recognition.

Crucial issues were water supply, which led those that could
not afford to have a well to buy water from water carriers, power
supply and lack of roads. However, these issues are gradual-
ly overcome. The first doctors, Logothetopoulos, Spiliopoulos,
Pikros, settle in the area, the pharmacies of loannidis and Tziva-
nidis, Skiadas's grocery and Loukeas's bakery open...

At the seaside, there open restaurants and fish-taverns where
Eleftherios Venizelos used to give dinners at the “Kritikos” tav-
ern owned by Loukoyannakis, whereas the royal family used
to frequent “Aegli” owned by Sakellarios. In the same period,
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21nv mapaiia (uBeotiatdpia kal PapotaPepveg, Ye Tov EAeu-
B¢pio Beviého va mapabétel yedpata otnv taBepva «Kpnukogy
Tou Aoukoyliawdkn, eve N BaciAikr olkoyevelia ouxvale Oto 0Tl
atéplo «AfyAn» tou 2axkeMdpiou. Tryv i8ia emoxr| avolyel kar n
Bpulikry «Nepdiday, apxikd wg mapahiakd eotiatdpio. To Kaha-
HAKI YIVETal yVWOTO Kal avartUooeTdl OIKOVOUIKA Kal OIKIoTIK. H
(UOIKr| ToU opop®Id, N npepia kai n dpoaid mou Mpoo@épel padf
pe tnv mevtakdBapn BdAacod Tou o kabiotouv 16avikd TpoopI-
OMO YIa TIG KAAOKAIPIVEG EKOPOHES Twv ABnvaiwv.

To 1928 yivetal to mpwto «ox€dio mdAewe» tou Kahapakiou
mou miepIAdpBave v mapahiakr, and v INikpoddevn péxpr To
agpodpdpio kal oe Bd0og péxpl tnv 0dd AucioTpdtoug.

Eikool prjveg petd tnv avayvwpion tng koivotntag KaAapakiou
armoomdotnke amnd autrv o cuvolkiopdg Kopvnvol. Afyo apydtepa,
n €ktaon twv Kopvnvov anaAoTpi®Bnke yia tnv Kataokeur| Tou
agpodpopiou tou EMnvikoU. To 1930 anoondotnke ané to Ka-
AQUAKI KAl © OUVOIKIOPOG Tou EAMnvikoU, Ta onpepivd Aiknyopikd.

To 1936 eykpivetar and tnv kuPépvnon To ox€dIo puPoTOopiag
TOU OUVOIKIOHOU «ANPOGY, KaBWG Kal Tou veooUoTaTou ouvol-
KIopoU «Tpdxwvegy. Mexpl to 1940 n mepioxr) yvwpiler paydaia
au&non tou mAnBucpou.

KATOXH

Tnv mepiodo tng Katoxrig to Kahapdki vinBer évtova tn yeppa-
VIKr) TTapouoia e€artiag g yerviaorig Tou pe o agpodpdpio Tou
EMnvikou. IoMEg katoikieg, kupiwg Pileg, emtdxBnkav. Emeidn,
OpwG, aflwpatolxol Tou yeppavikoUu otpatol dlauevouy Katd TN
Sidpkeia tng Katoxrg otnv mepioxr, to Kahapdki amogelyel Toug

exteveic BouBapdiopouc.

O ANipog €dwoe o mapwv otnv EBvikA Avtiotaon). O yiatpdg
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legendary “Neraida” opens, initially as a seaside restaurant. Kal-
amaki becomes known and develops both economically and
residentially. Its natural beauty, the peace and coolness it has,
along with its crystal-clear sea make it an ideal destination for the
Athenians’ summer trips.

In 1928, the first “urban plan” for Kalamaki is drawn, including
the seaside avenue from Pikrodafni up to the airport and reaching
deep up to Lysistratous street.

Twenty months after the recognition of the community of
Kalamaki, the Komninoi district was detached. A while later,
the Komnenon stretch was expropriated in favour of the con-
struction of the Hellinikon airport. In 1930, the settlement of
Hellinikon, present Dikigorika, was also detached.

In 1936, the government approves of the zoning plan for the
“Alimos” settlement as well as that for the newly-formed “Tra-
chones” settlement. The area’s population grew rapidly until [940.

THE OCCUPATION

During the Occupation, Kalamaki strongly feels the presence
of the Germans due to the neighbouring airport of Hellinikon.
Numerous residences, mainly mansions, were requisitioned. Nev-
ertheless, due to the fact that officials of the German army lived
in the area during the occupation, Kalamaki is protected from
extensive bombarding. Alimos checked in the National Resist-
ance. In Paleo Faleron, doctor Yannatos established a resistance
cell in which many Kalamaki residents participated. Siblings Takis
and Eleni Stephanidi, aged |7 and 15, organised a strong resist-
ance group despite their young age. It is claimed that in one risky
operation of theirs they managed to empty 1,500 barrels with




lNawvdrog iSpuce oto [Naraid ddAnpo avtiotaciaxkd mupriva, GTov
omoio ouppeteixav moMoi Kahapakiwtee. Ta adéppia Tdkng kai
EAévn 2tepavion, |7 kai 15 xpovav, mapd tn pikpr Toug nAIkia,
olotnoav Ioxupr| avtiotaoiakr] opdda. Mvnuoveletal 6t o€ pia
piyokivduvn e&dppnor| toug katépbwoav va adeidoouv 1500
Bapéhia Peviivng mou mpoopiCovtav yid Tov epodIacud Twv yep-
HAVIKQOV agpoTTAAV@V.

O otpatiwtikdg nyetng Tou EMnvikol Adikol AmieAeuBepwtikou
21patol (EAAY), 2tépavog 2apdeng, katolkoloe Poviua oto
Kahapdki, otnv 066 Xpuoootdpou 2pipvng 4.

To 1942 n kovétnta MNahaiod Gapou mpodyetar oe Afjpo
kai n koivétnta KaAapakiou evtdooetal o autdv. To 1945 yivetal
avaouotaon tng koivotntag Kahapakiou.

METAMOAEMIKA XPONIA

Katd ug dexaetieg 1950-1960 o mAnBuopdc oty koivétnta Ka-
Aapakiou au&dvetar katd 200%. AnpioupyoUvtal oI CUVOIKICHO!
Snpociwv UMaMAAWY, EKTEAWVIOTOV, EQOPIAKWY, XNUIKWY PNXavi-
KOV KATT., A kar ol cuvoikiopof Twv Kubnpiwy, Twv Kepahovitwy,
Twv KwvotaviivourmoAt)V Kal Twv AUTTTIWTOV.

21N Oekaetia tou '60 n meploxr| and Aouxo TeodoTio yivetal
olyxpovn TOAN, Ve EMXWPATWVETAl N Akt Tou ZEQUPOoU Kal
Snuioupyeftar n peydAn papiva tou EMnvikol Opyaviopout Tou-
piopou. To 1968 n koivétnta Kahapakiou divel tn Béon tng oto
olyxpovo Arfjuo Alipou, Tou 1&pUetarl pe Baoihikd Aidtaypa kai

€xel Ta OloIKNTIKG GpId TToU IoXUoUV UEXPI OrjuePa.

petrol which were meant for the supply of the German airplanes.
The military leader of the Greek People’s Liberation Army
(ELAS), Stephanos Sarafis, lived in Kalamaki permanently, at 4
Chrysostomou Smyrnis street.
In 1942, the community of Paleon Phaleron becomes a mu-
nicipality and the Kalamaki community becomes a part of it
administratively. In 1945 the Kalamaki community re-establishes.

POST-WAR YEARS

During the 50s and the 60s, the population in the communi-
ty of Kalamaki increases by 200%. Settlements of civil servants,
customs officers, tax officers, chemical engineers as well as of
Kytherians, Cephalonians, Constantinopolitans and Egyptians are
established.

In the ‘60s the peaceful suburb becomes a modern town while
Zephyrus coast is filled in, and the large marina of the Hellenic
Organisation of Tourism is constructed. In 1968, the community
of Kalamaki becomes the contemporary municipality of Alimos,
which is established by a Royal Decree and has the same admin-
istrative boundaries as nowadays.
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- O Iepdg Nadg Koiunoewg Oeotokou (lMavayitoa) otov Naraié Ahipo.
= Katd tnv avéyepaon tou vaou, 1o 1945 ouvéBaAe otn damdvn, peta&u dAAwv,
=....._:___ Kai n oikoyeveia Ey. Mmevdkn.
\\ The Church of the Assumption of Mary (Panagitsa) in Old Alimos district.
- The Em. Benaki family, among others, contributed to the cost of the church
construction in 1945.
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O lepdég Nadg Ayiou lNMavteAenuovog
0eomddel oto Avw KaAapdki.

The Holy Church of Aghios Pandeleimon
dominates Ano Kalamaki area.
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H mAateia EkteAwviotwv.
Ekteloniston square.
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H mAateia EkteAwviotov.

Ekteloniston square.
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H NA mAeupd tou
Adpou lNavi ue xwpoug
npaoivou, a@Antiouou
Kar avayuxng.
The SE side of Pani hill
featuring green areas
and sports and recreation
facilities.
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Amoyn npwnv agpodpopiou amé tov Adgo avi.
View of the former international airport from Pani hill.
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H apxovuikrj katoikia tou epouAdvou, mepiatoixiouévn amé to ddoog.
Kdtw é1akpivovtai o lepdg Nadg Eigodiwv g Ogotdkou ] i
Kai Bonbntikd Ktiopata tng Katoikiag. 3 O = ' ' : ¥

The Geroulanos’ mansion surrounded by the forest. _ . v ' A e
At the bottom there can be seen the Holy Church of the Assumption : '
of Mary (Koimisi tis Theotokou) and outhouses of the residence.
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Apxaio B¢atpo Evwvipou.
Aiakpivetal n opBoywvia opxnotpa,

o1 rmdpodoi kai o1 Bpdvoi tng mpoedpiag.
The ancient theatre of Euonymon.
The rectangular orchestra, the parodoi

(passageways) and the presidency
thrones can be seen.
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BdBpo aydAuatog ato apxaio Béatpo.
To dyaApa @iAo&eveital Sty el _ G e TR
oto Apxaiodoyiké Mouceio [Meipaid. r. " i = ) - :
A statue pedestal in the ancient theatre.
The statue itself is hosted in the ! ..: : i Ly 5 ) s
Archaeological Museum of Pirdeus. It - ] 20 Y.



Apxaio 6¢atpo Evwvupovu.

The ancient theatre of Euonymon.




Pwpaiké rmydéi, tpnua
EPEIMWEVNG OIKIag, oTnv
0066 Apxaiou Ogdtpovu.

A Roman well, part of a
ruined house in Ancient
Theatre street.




Ag&id: Katdhoima mpwtoxpiotiavikng BaciAikig
(506-60¢ ai. u.X.) oto mpoavAio
Tou auyxpovou lepou Naou Zwoddxou Nnyng.

On the right: Remains of an early-Christian basilica
(5" — 6% c. A.D.) at the yard of modern
Holy Church of Zoodochos Pigi.




Apxaio Aatopeio otov Adpo [lavi.

An ancient quarry on Pani hill.
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Aemtopépeieg tou Budavuivou vaou twv Eicodiwv tng Ogotdkou oto KtAua Tpaxwvwy. Details from the Byzantine church of the Presentation of Mary in the Trachones estate.




O 10t0pikdg vadg twv Eigodiwv tng Ocotokou
Tpaxwvwv gival to povadiké aképaia owiopuevo
Budavtivé pvnueio ota véuia mpodotia tng ABrvag.
The historic church of the Presentation of Mary in
Trachones is the only entire Byzantine monument
surviving in the southern suburbs of Athens.
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‘Eva am6 ta moAAd
péuata tou Adipou, To
pépa Tpaxwvwy.

One of the numerous
brooks in Alimos, the
Trachones brook.
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H opyavwpévn aktn

Kar n Aew@dpog lNMooeidwvog.

Ag&id diakpivetar n Aewpdpog Adipou.

The organised beach and Poseidonos avenue.
Alimos avenue can be seen on the right.




Newdpog Mooeidwvog kai de€id n eicodog
ot Mapiva AAipou.

Poseidonos avenue and the entrance
to Alimos Marina on the right.
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Mapiva AAipou, n peyaAitepn g EAAdéag kai tng NA Eupwrng.

Alimos Marina, the biggest in Greece as well as in Southeastern Europe.
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Opyavwpévn aktrj tou AAipou.

The Alimos organised beach.




XiAidéeg kdtoikor Tou AAipou kai Toupioteg
EMIOKEMTOVTAl TO KAAOKaip! TNV opyavwpévn mAag.
Thousands of Alimos residents and tourists

visit Alimos organised beach in the summer.
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A’ aktrj) AAipou.
A’ Alimos beach.
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To akpwtrp! Tou Ayiou Koopd (KwAidg Akpa).
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H rrepioxn tou Ayiou Kooud

Kai To mpwnv agpodpouio EAAnvikou.
The Aghios Kosmas area

and the former airport of Ellinikon.




H Mapiva AAipou kai to mapaAiaké
pétwro péxpi tov Ayio Koopd.

The Alimos Marina and the seafront
area up to Aghios Kosmas.
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% r 4k 3 (] . e A M ,.1'@- _,..- o - . Vi ] . ' = - : The Allied War Cemetery on the left

and the Marina on the right.
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2uppaxiké Ztpatwtkd Nekpotapeio AAipou. The Alimos Allied War Cemetery.
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Aiakpivovtai aré apiotepd n mepioxr) EkteAwviotwy,

n Asw@dpog lwviag, n mepioxn Kubnpiwv kai to ynmedo Tpaxwvwy.
On the left there can be seen Ekteloniston area, lonias avenue,
Kytherion area and the football field of Trachones.
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IMepioxn EkteAwviotav - Avw KaAapakiou. Aeéid kdtw, n Ae@@épos Oeoprtopog.
Ekteloniston area - Ano Kalamaki. Bottom right, Theomitoros avenue.
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lepég Nadg Koiunoewg Oeotdkou (Ogountopog).

Holy Church of the Assumption of the Mary (Theomitoros).
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lepdg Nadg lNavayiag Muptdiwtiooag otn Aswpdopo Kubnpiwv.

The Holy Church of Panaghia Myrtidiotissa in Kytherion avenue.
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[Npotoun Maviwg Maupoyévoug otov opwvupo medédpopo. [Npotoun lewpyiou Kapaiokdkn otnv opwvupn mAateia. [Npotoun EA. BeviZéAou, otnv gioodo tnG moAng
The bust of Manto Mavrogenous in the pedestrian zone The bust of Georgios Karaiskakis in the square (Aewe. Bouhiaypévng kai 066G Awdekavrioou).
by the same name. by the same name.




Aemtopépeieg amé o Hpwo lMeodviwv

otnv rapaAia.
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«Zdnmeioy, Xmupog BaoiAeiou (XuAroyr) Anuou AAiuou). «2oupeahiatikd tomioy, Mwpyog Aépmarrag (XuAdoyr) Anuou AAiuou).
«Zappiony, Spyros Vassiliou (Municipality of Alimos Collection). «Surreal landscape, Giorgos Derpapas (Municipality of Alimos Collection).
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7 aOreik TdpéAaon otnv 066 Awdekay Jou. g ")

St'uderlt parade along Dodekanissou'stfget.
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& Aywveg tou Nautikou
Anpotiké KoAupPntipio AAipou, amé ta mo auyxpova tng EAAdoag. OpiAou KaAapakiou.
The Alimos Municipal Swimming“f,&gl, one of the most modern in Greece. n Kalamaki Nautical
Club race.
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To Anpotiké KoAupBntipio Adipou ouxvd piAoevei eBvikég kal maveupwnaikég abAntikég diopyavawoelg.

The Alimos Municipal Swimming pool frequently hosts national and European athletic events.
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To ynmedo Tpaxwvwv. Aiakpivetal

Turfua tou édooug (ktrua MepouAdvou).

The Trachones football field. Part of the forest
(the Geroulanos estate) can be seen.




[NAateia Ave€aptnoiag otnv mepioxn EkteAwviotwy.
Anexartissias square in Ekteloniston area.
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To lNdpko KukAogopiakng Aywyng.
The Trdffic Education Park.



[NAateia Ave&aptnoiag
otnv nepioxn EkteAwviotwv.




O Adpog Ayiou NikoAdou. Ae€id to ekkAnodki tou Ayiou NikoAdou —
Ayiou l'ewpyiou kai apiotepd ta ynmeda PUMdoKeT («UmacKeTAKIay).

Aghios Nikolaos hill. On the left the chapel of Aghios Nikolaos —
Aghios Georgios, and the basketball courts ( “basketakia”) on the right.




lepég Nadg Ayiou lewpyiou —
Ayiou NikoAdou atov Adpo Ayiou NikoAdou.

The chapel of Aghios Georgios —
Aghios Nikolaos on Aghios Nikolaos hill.

Ndpog Kubnpiwv.
Kytherion hill.
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To Mikpd Aipavdki twv gpacitexvav aAiéwv.
The amateur fishermen’s Small Port.




[Aurté amé ) oeipd «Aévipay tou 61€BvoUg priung yAumn
®iroAdou TAoura (Philolaos) otnv mAateia Kapaiokdkn.

A sculpture from the series “Trees” by world renowned
sculptor Philoaos Tloupas (Philolaos) at Karaiskaki square.

—

Ae&id: n mepioxn) tng mAateiag Kapaiokdkn K% /.-r
(«KAoUBa») oto Avw KaAapdki. | '

On the right: the area of Karaiskaki square |
(“Klouva”) at Ano Kalamaki, |REEEENRIES




2tabudég METPO «Alipogy.




Ag&id: Ztabuég METPO «Alipogy.




lNaidikég 2Ztabudg odou Ooukudidou. H rrepioxn mAateia Ooukubdidou oto Avw KaAapdki.

Nursery school in Thoukididou street. Thoukididou square at Ano Kalamaki.

204




H naibikn) xapd tng 06ou Ooukudidou.
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Oéatpo «Maipn Apwvny.

Ag&id: MNaidikn Xapd otov Adgo lMavi.
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Maidikég Ztabudg odou Mavéniapd.

Nursery in Mandelaras street. Naidikn) xapd nAateiag Ave&aptnoiag.

/4 Anexartissias Playground.



[MAateia 3nG XemteuPpiou
(086G KarAépyn & Ta&lapxwv).




[kpdrt (Aertopépeieg) mepipeTpikd Tou
ynmédou Tpaxwvwv otn Aewgdpo lwviag.
Grdffiti (details) around the Trachones
football field in lonias avenue.







Nponyoluevn ogAida: «Immeicy,

AAékog @aoiavig (lbiwtikn auldoyn).

EktéOnke ato MoAitiotikd Kévipo Adipou to 2018.
Previous page: “Horsmen”,

Alekos Fassianos (Private Collection).

Exhibited in 2018, Cultural Center of Alimos.

«©alaooivo tormioy,
2nipog BaaiAeiou (I61wtikn ouAdoyn).
ExtéOnke oto lMoArtiotikdé Kévipo AAiuou to 2017.

“Marine Landscape”,
Spyros Vassiliou (Private Collection).
Exhibited in 2017, Cultural Center of Alimos.
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Anpotikdg kivyuatoypdpog «Cine AAgog.
Municipal cinema “Cine Alimos”.




To Anpaﬁxe:’o A)ﬁy g@?&’Aplotoré)\ou-g: v
_The Alimos Town Hall in Aristotelous street. :
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